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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Good morning.

          3  Welcome to this morning's hearing of the City

          4  Council's Committee on Transportation.  My name is

          5  John Liu.  I have the privilege of chairing this

          6  Committee.

          7                 Today we are holding this oversight

          8  hearing to examine the TLC's, the Taxi and

          9  Limousine's progress in the taxi technology

         10  enhancements that have been envisioned since 2004.

         11                 The focus of this oversight hearing

         12  will be where we are on these enhancements, and will

         13  they improve the taxicab riding experience for

         14  riders of New York City Taxis.

         15                 There are many enhancements that have

         16  been envisioned as part of this process.  Some of

         17  these include the ability of passengers to pay their

         18  fares by credit cards or debit cards.

         19                 The ability of the Taxi and Limousine

         20  Commission, i.e., the City, to collect trip data

         21  electronically, thus having the potential of making

         22  this kind of record keeping much more efficient.

         23                 The ability for passengers to get

         24  some real time information on news, sports, weather,

         25  et cetera, and also an electronic messaging
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          2  capability which may be helpful in helping

          3  passengers locate anything that they may have lost

          4  in taxicabs.

          5                 Also, to respond to certain kinds of

          6  emergency situations.

          7                 So these are enhancements that the

          8  TLC has envisioned will be helpful to the riders, as

          9  well as to the City in its regulation of taxicabs,

         10  and perhaps to the taxicab drivers and the company

         11  owners themselves.

         12                 Although, there are some concerns

         13  that have been raised rather vociferously about the

         14  privacy rights of the drivers and why they may not

         15  want to be tracked at all times that they are on

         16  duty.

         17                 There also issues concerning the

         18  costs imposed on the industry and the drivers and

         19  some of the owners that would be imposed as a result

         20  of this kind of mandate.

         21                 So that is why we are having this

         22  oversight hearing, and we look forward to a very

         23  frank and thorough discussion on these issues as the

         24  time frame for this -- actually, it will have almost

         25  been three years since this was envisioned between
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          2  the time that it was initiated and the time that we

          3  may see it come to fruition for the taxi riding

          4  public.

          5                 Let me introduce my colleagues who

          6  are joining us today at this hearing.  Council

          7  Member Daniel Garodnick to my left, from Manhattan,

          8  Council Member Joe Addabbo, from Queens and Council

          9  Member Oliver Koppell from the Bronx.

         10                 I also want to thank the staff of

         11  this Committee for all of their diligent work in

         12  preparing for this hearing.  Phil Hom our

         13  Legislative Counsel, Ron Kim our Policy Analyst and

         14  Chima Obichere from the Finance Division.

         15                 At this point I'd like to turn the

         16  floor over to Andrew Salkin, our First Deputy

         17  Commissioner at the Taxi and Limousine Commission.

         18                 Good morning, Andrew, and thanks for

         19  coming.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         21  Good morning.  Thank you for having me.  Good

         22  morning, Chairman Liu and members of the

         23  Transportation Committee.  Thank you for the

         24  opportunity to appear before you today and testify

         25  regarding the Taxicab Customer Service Improvement
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          2  Project.  My name is Andrew Salkin, and I am the

          3  First Deputy Commissioner here at the Taxi and

          4  Limousine Commission.  Joining me is Charles Frazier

          5  our General Counsel.

          6                 Ensuring the continuance, further

          7  development and improvement of the taxi and

          8  limousine service, consonant with the promotion of

          9  public comfort and convenience, is part of the TLC's

         10  Charter mandate.  It is with this goal of improving

         11  passengers' experience that the TLC developed the

         12  Customer Service Improvements Initiative that I will

         13  be discussing today.

         14                 When the Mayor and Commission worked

         15  to raise the taxicab fare in 2004 to provide drivers

         16  with an opportunity to earn a livable wage, a

         17  promise to the public that higher fares would also

         18  mean an improved passenger experience through a

         19  Customer Service Improvements Project was also made.

         20                 In addition to being an important

         21  project for the riding public, this project is also

         22  important for the TLC, the taxicab owners and

         23  drivers.  I look forward to a productive discussion

         24  this morning.

         25                 Let me offer an overview of the
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          2  specific improvements from the perspective of a

          3  passenger.  When a passenger steps into a taxicab

          4  and the driver turns on the meter, a short silent

          5  welcoming prologue will play on the screen in the

          6  back seat.  As the driver pulls away from the curb,

          7  the screen displays a map showing the location of

          8  the cab.  The passenger is able to scroll through

          9  different media offered on the screen, pulling up

         10  weather updates and the latest sports scores.  She

         11  gets a phone call, so she decides to mute the

         12  screen.  At a red light, the driver gets a text

         13  message that an accident has occurred on the FDR and

         14  has backed things up and suggests using 2nd Avenue

         15  instead.  When the trip ends, a payment screen

         16  appears, and the passenger swipes her credit card

         17  and inputs a tip. Several hours later, the passenger

         18  realizes that she left a package in the trunk, but

         19  she does not have the receipt or the medallion

         20  number. She calls 311 and provides the time and

         21  location she got the of the cab.  The information is

         22  used to automatically review trip sheets and send a

         23  text message to the cabs that did drop-offs at that

         24  time in that area to look in their trunk. The driver

         25  does that at the end of their next trip, finds the
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          2  item and returns it to the passenger for big tip.

          3                 That seamless combination of

          4  different technology-based improvements is what we

          5  aimed for.  The first required improvement is the

          6  acceptance of credit and debit cards in all

          7  taxicabs.  Passengers in our focus groups and

          8  surveys have been particularly excited about this

          9  feature. They have indicated that this will promote

         10  more frequent taxicab use, meaning increased revenue

         11  for drivers and owners.

         12                 The equipment is installed in the

         13  rear of the taxicab and will allow passengers to

         14  swipe their own cards and manage payments, much like

         15  an Automated Teller Machine.

         16                 The TLC has worked closely with the

         17  credit card industry to establish protocols that

         18  ensure security, reliability and convenience of

         19  transactions.  For example, the TLC has successfully

         20  negotiated a waiver of the signatures for fares less

         21  that $25.00.

         22                 The second required improvement is

         23  the display of an electronic passenger map in each

         24  taxicab showing its actual location.  This is being

         25  accomplished through the installation of a Passenger
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          2  Information Monitor, or a PIM. Along with an

          3  electronic map, the PIM provides passengers with TLC

          4  and other public information, such as the clean air

          5  taxicab information recently mandated by Local Law

          6  54.

          7                 This effectively replaces the

          8  stickers currently displayed in the rear of the cab.

          9  The PIMs are able to provide other media, such as

         10  news, information and entertainment for passengers.

         11  They will also be used to facilitate payment.

         12  Revenue-generating media, such as advertisements

         13  that offset some of the system's costs, are also

         14  permitted.

         15                 PIMs are controlled by passengers via

         16  touch screens and can be easily turned off or muted.

         17                 The third requirement improved is

         18  automatic trip sheets to replace the handwritten

         19  trip sheets currently required for each trip, during

         20  each shift.  Drivers and medallion owners will be

         21  able to easily capture the start location, end

         22  location, start time, end time, and fare for every

         23  metered trip.  Part of why we included this

         24  improvement was to address concerns raised by both

         25  the taxicab drivers and owners about the requirement
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          2  to maintain a detailed, handwritten log of every

          3  single trip.

          4                 This trip information will also

          5  assist the public and the TLC in two important

          6  ways:

          7                 First, it will vastly improve our

          8  ability to respond to lost property requests by

          9  turning "a needle in a haystack" exercise into a

         10  targeted search aimed at specific cabs.

         11                 Second, this data will provide an

         12  invaluable resource for the TLC when evaluating

         13  effectiveness of taxi cabs in serving the public.

         14                 The fourth required improvement is a

         15  Driver Information Monitor, or the DIM, that will

         16  allow for direct communication with taxicab drivers

         17  via a simple text messaging system.  Drivers can be

         18  notified of fare opportunities, lost property

         19  issues, traffic congestion, or even emergency

         20  situations.  There will be a safety mechanism, so

         21  the DIM does not distract drivers while they are

         22  moving.

         23                 In undertaking this initiative, the

         24  TLC embarked on a competitive procurement process

         25  that started with a Request for Information in the
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          2  fall of 2004.

          3                 TLC determined the best course of

          4  action would be to set technological and financial

          5  baselines, but to allow the medallion owners to

          6  select the vendor that best meets their needs.

          7                 In February of 2005, a Request for

          8  Proposals was released, and after an extensive

          9  evaluation period, final contracts were approved by

         10  the Comptroller in June 2006.

         11                 The TLC signed contracts with four

         12  vendors to provide an integrated solution for the

         13  taxicab industry and passengers.  Those four vendors

         14  are Digital Dispatch Systems, Mobile Knowledge,

         15  TaxiTech, and Verifone Transportation Systems.

         16                 Through the RFP process the TLC was

         17  able to negotiate very strong contracts that secure

         18  high levels of service at relatively low costs.  The

         19  current systems will be offered at rates ranging

         20  from $2,900 to $7,200 over a three-year period for

         21  equipment and recurring network fees.  These fees

         22  will be the responsibility of the medallion owner.

         23                 Drivers will be responsible for

         24  credit and debit card charges of approximately 3.75%

         25  per transaction.  In total, TLC estimates that the
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          2  cost of the Customer Service Improvements for the

          3  taxicab industry will be less than 25 cents per

          4  ride.

          5                 We are confident that this package of

          6  improvements delivers significant value added for

          7  passengers, drivers and owners.  The TLC has been

          8  conducting extensive focus groups, field

          9  demonstrations, and outreach efforts to test

         10  reliability and quality.  TLC staff members have

         11  spent hundreds of hours in one-on-one interactions,

         12  in focus group sessions gathering feedback, and

         13  organizing ride-arounds to test Customer Service

         14  Improvements in actual use.  The technology does

         15  work, and works remarkably well.

         16                 Passengers are very excited about

         17  these new services, and will likely be riding in

         18  cabs more often as a result.

         19                 For passengers, our focus groups and

         20  survey results indicate that they see real value in

         21  the new improvements.  They have been especially

         22  impressed with the credit and debit card acceptance.

         23                 The payment interface is smooth,

         24  intuitive and quick, with many of the transactions

         25  occurring faster than our goal of eight seconds.
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          2                 The Passenger Information Monitors

          3  make the process seamless. Passengers have also been

          4  impressed with the content of the PIMs, particularly

          5  the real-time maps.

          6                 Reliability and service are major

          7  concerns for owners and drivers.  All of the

          8  approved vendors for this project are being put

          9  through extensive rounds of what we call

         10   "acceptance" and "functionality" testing to ensure

         11  that different systems offer the integrated services

         12  as promised, and they are technologically sound.

         13                 This extensive testing included all

         14  five boroughs, Nassau County, Westchester County and

         15  Newark Airport.  The technology has passed testing

         16  in all of these areas.

         17                 In addition, all four vendors will

         18  have qualified service centers readily available for

         19  owners and drivers to ensure that any necessary

         20  repairs or modifications can be made quickly and

         21  effectively.

         22                 We are excited and eager to bring

         23  these new services to the public as soon as

         24  possible.  At the same time, we want to make sure

         25  the product is ready for New York City taxicab
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          2  service.  That is why the TLC has engaged in a

          3  process to research, evaluate, and procure the best

          4  vendors and technology possible.

          5                 We began this project convinced that

          6  the technology existed to deliver these services

          7  that the Mayor and the Commission wanted passengers

          8  to get, but we needed to be sure it could all work

          9  together.  Through the competitive procurement

         10  process, we have succeeded in this goal.

         11                 Just a few weeks ago, we rolled out

         12  the first of 200 taxicabs outfitted with a full

         13  suite of Customer Service Improvements for the final

         14  round of testing.  These taxicabs are in-service

         15  vehicles providing service to the public as we

         16  speak.

         17                 If all goes well, we expect the final

         18  approval that will allow for the installation of the

         19  equipment in all 13,000 plus taxicabs as soon as

         20  this spring.  We hope for completion of the full

         21  rollout in about four to six months after the

         22  completion of the final testing phase.

         23                 The goal is to have the Customer

         24  Service Improvements fully installed and functioning

         25  in every taxicab by the end of 2007.
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          2                 Two and a half years ago, the Mayor

          3  and Commission committed to two very important

          4  things:  For taxicab drivers, we committed to

          5  ensuring them the opportunity to earn a livable

          6  wage.  With the March 2004 fare increase and the

          7  recent fare adjustment, we have delivered on that.

          8                 We also made a promise to the public

          9  that higher fares would lead to better taxicab

         10  service.  Now, we are on the verge of being able to

         11  deliver on that pledge, as well.  The Customer

         12  Service Improvements project that I have described

         13  for you today offers the potential for all

         14  participants in the taxicab market, passengers,

         15  drivers and owners, to come out as winners.

         16                 Thank you for your time, and I would

         17  be happy to answer any questions you may have.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         19  much, Deputy Commissioner.  I want to thank you for

         20  providing this informative testimony, and of course

         21  we do have a number of questions that I hope we'll

         22  be able to get answers to.

         23                 I guess we can start off with the

         24  issues of cost.  There is a concern on the part of

         25  the industry, or some people in the industry, that
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          2  this is a significant mandate that is being imposed

          3  on the industry.  The units themselves, as you

          4  testified to, will be -- the costs of the units

          5  would be the responsibility of the medallion owners.

          6  If the trial is successful, and you do roll it out

          7  to all 13,000 some odd taxicabs in the City, that

          8  would be a requirement on the part of all of the

          9  medallion owners?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         11  That's correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Is there any

         13  concern about the cost implications for the

         14  medallion owners?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         16  Sure.  I think it's important to put in perspective,

         17  and I mentioned this in the testimony, how this came

         18  about, at the time of passing the fare increase, the

         19  Commission also voted to do the Customer Service

         20  improvements.  And if you think about what the fare

         21  increase was, and I don't know, thinking back on the

         22  testimonies of the public, especially the cab

         23  industry and the cab drivers, I think it had been

         24  eight years since the last fare increase, and that

         25  fare increase in 2004 was significant.  I think it
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          2  was about 26 to 28 percent.

          3                 After our analysis of that fare

          4  increase, we realized that it actually provided over

          5  $400 million per year to the industry, so that's

          6  money that the drivers and owners both got.  I think

          7  the Commission, in offering that fare increase, also

          8  said to the industry very clearly at that time,

          9  you're going to have to put some new improvements in

         10  the cabs, so all this money that you're getting,

         11  some of it will have to go to these improvements.

         12                 So at the time that this was made,

         13  the idea of this and the fare increase coupled

         14  together, I think compensated for the cost.  If I

         15  remember correctly, I believe it was about -- the

         16  average cost per ride went up by about $2.50 because

         17  of that fare increase.  I think if you think about

         18  the cost of these improvements costing about 25

         19  cents per ride, you're still looking at a

         20  significant increase that the industry will still be

         21  able to get, although they had been getting the

         22  increased benefits of the increase for three years

         23  so far, as you've mentioned, without these

         24  improvements.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So in other words,
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          2  this system was already talked about when the fare

          3  increase went into effect?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          5  Absolutely.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And people who

          7  bought medallions in the last couple of years would

          8  have known that this system was on its way.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  It

         10  certainly was public information.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And the medallion

         12  owners, are they able to pass the cost of this

         13  through to anybody who's leasing the medallions or

         14  leasing the vehicles?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         16  Well, the one thing that's great about the cab

         17  industry is its diversity and how a cab actually

         18  comes to be on the street.  The answer to your

         19  question is a little more complicated because

         20  drivers are sometimes owners of the vehicles.

         21  Sometimes they're owners of the cabs.  The medallion

         22  owners sometimes own the cabs and sometimes are the

         23  drivers.  So there's a huge mix, and it really

         24  depends on who you are.  The way we view it is it's

         25  the medallion owner's responsibility to ensure that
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          2  the taxicab has all these improvements in there, and

          3  we fully expect that that's who will be fronting the

          4  brunt of the cost.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, but what

          6  you're saying, though, is that the medallion owner

          7  does have the capability to pass through these

          8  costs.  Is there any allowance over and above the

          9  lease caps?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         11  No.  The lease caps have not been raised since the

         12  last fare increase in 2004, and they're not intended

         13  to be raised.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So a medallion

         15  owner would be required, if this thing is

         16  successful, would be required to purchase the

         17  equipment, and they would not have an increase in

         18  their lease cap?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         20  That's correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So what does that

         22  mean?  Does that mean the medallion owner has to eat

         23  the entire cost, and that it would not be passed

         24  onto the drivers?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:
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          2  They certainly cannot pass it on versus the lease

          3  cost.  Again, the reason I'm hesitating is there's

          4  some drivers that have private agreements with

          5  agents or medallion owners, and I'm not privy to

          6  those private agreements, and I'm not privy to -- we

          7  don't regulate that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, private

          9  agreements that go beyond the lease caps?  Aren't

         10  the lease caps regulated by the TLC?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         12  Yes.  Absolutely.  So as far as lease caps go, the

         13  lease caps are not changing.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, are the lease

         15  caps actually effective?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         17  Absolutely they are.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Or do people do an

         19  end run through these private agreements?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         21  No, they do.  What I'm really thinking about is some

         22  individuals actually purchase their own car, and

         23  when they're purchasing the car, they're renting the

         24  medallion.  And the person who's in that situation

         25  would typically have an agent who is acting on
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          2  behalf of the medallion owner putting the car on the

          3  road.  And it's the agent's responsibility to make

          4  sure that that medallion is put on a car that meets

          5  all the requirements necessary to be an official

          6  taxicab and do service in New York City.  Some of

          7  the costs --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So there are

          9  drivers who will then bear the cost of this?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         11  They could, but, for example in that situation --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  No, no, let's not

         13  be academic about this, because I think the TLC

         14  understands exactly how --

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         16  I'm not trying to be academic.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         19  I'm really being honest. In some situations, for

         20  example, for the vehicle in that situation the agent

         21  pays for insurance, but the driver is paying for the

         22  car, so they might pay for the equipment on the car.

         23  So the question is --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So then that means

         25  there are a substantial number of drivers who would
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          2  actually have the cost of this equipment passed down

          3  to them?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          5  It's possible that's the case, yes.  It could be

          6  likely.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  It's likely.

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  It

          9  could be.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The Commission

         11  understands how many drivers are out there who are

         12  leasing the medallions only versus leasing the

         13  vehicles only versus leasing both, so you have a

         14  sense, and you know what the standard practices are

         15  out there.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         17  Right.  But again, I'm trying to suggest that it's

         18  not clear that that cost would be passed on.  It's

         19  the medallion owner's responsibility to make sure

         20  their car has this.  Is it the responsibility of the

         21  driver who's renting the car to pay for it?  No.

         22  It's the medallion owner's responsibility.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  In the past the TLC

         24  has imposed additional requirements.  And, again,

         25  these requirements, I want to make this very clear,

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  many of these requirements make sense from the

          3  perspective of the passengers.  Riding a taxicab in

          4  New York City is quite an experience, shall we say.

          5  And we're always trying to improve upon that

          6  experience for people who are New Yorkers and ride

          7  taxicabs on a regular basis, as well as people who

          8  are visitors to New York and are daring enough to

          9  get into a cab.  Although I shouldn't say that

         10  because today I think the taxicab riding experience

         11  is a lot more pleasant than some of the movies would

         12  have you believe.  But we're always trying to make

         13  that better, so from the perspective of the

         14  passengers, these enhancements have a great

         15  potential to make for a better riding experience.

         16                 On the other hand, we do also have to

         17  be concerned about the drivers and the industry

         18  participants themselves because without the

         19  participants in the industry, we won't have taxicabs

         20  in New York City.

         21                 So the idea that the cost of this

         22  technology, which is in the thousands of dollars, I

         23  think your testimony suggests that the medallion

         24  owners have to eat that cost.  I think the reality,

         25  not just the possibility, the reality is that many
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          2  of the drivers will have to eat these costs.  Is

          3  that a fair statement?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          5  Again, you're interpreting --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  If anybody would

          7  like to testify, and we'll hear from a large number

          8  of people, we definitely want to hear from you, so I

          9  would ask you to please raise your hands, and we'll

         10  have the sergeants give you one of these slips of

         11  paper, and we'll put you on the speakers list.

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         13  There are 42,000 - plus licensed drivers who operate

         14  vehicles at some point during the year in New York

         15  City.  There are 13,000 vehicles, so most of the

         16  drivers do not own their vehicle.  Most of the

         17  drivers are basically leasing their vehicle in one

         18  fashion or another. For those drivers, they are

         19  covered and protected by the lease cap.  For drivers

         20  that own the medallion, own their vehicle and have

         21  other contracts with other people, they could likely

         22  be faced with paying additional fees for the package

         23  of goods.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, that's fine.

         25  I'm not saying necessarily that it's still not worth
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          2  it from the perspective of the passengers, but I

          3  think we need to -- the purpose of having this

          4  hearing is to make sure we get the facts out on the

          5  table.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          7  And I'm not trying to hide facts, and I fully agree

          8  with you, and one of the things we've tried to do is

          9  be very clear to everybody that there are costs

         10  involved here.  We've never hid that, hidden that

         11  fact, and I think that's clear.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let's move onto

         13  another cost issue.  When someone goes to the store

         14  and purchases groceries, or they go to a restaurant

         15  and charges their meal on a credit card, the owner

         16  of that store, or the owner of that restaurant has

         17  to pay a transaction fee on the credit card use.

         18  Typically, it's maybe one percent.  In some cases

         19  two percent?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         21  I'm not privy to what most people pay.  My

         22  understanding is that --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That is our

         24  understanding.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:
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          2  The City of New York gets a really good deal, and I

          3  think it's just over two percent, and we were able

          4  to procure that rate for the rest of the industry.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, so then what

          6  is the rationale for the 3.75% charge that is

          7  imposed on the drivers when someone pays their fare

          8  using a credit card?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  My

         10  understanding of this is the way it works is there's

         11  a charge of a percentage and then a flat fare that's

         12  also a charge.  And the 3.75 is an average depending

         13  on how big the fare is.  The bigger the fare is, the

         14  less the average.

         15                 So there's a flat fare plus a

         16  percentage, and that's just fixed by the credit card

         17  companies, and that's not something you can change

         18  or use.

         19                 Now, there's different ways that a

         20  driver can have a relationship with the credit card

         21  transaction.  They could be a merchant, which is

         22  much like a small business, and they would have,

         23  with a merchant, I believe you get better prices and

         24  better rates, but you might get additional risks or

         25  transaction time.  Or they could work through the
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          2  vendor or someone else who's acting as their

          3  merchant and get the money directly from the

          4  merchant, and I think there's administrative fees on

          5  top of that if they do that.

          6                 So there's different ways that people

          7  can participate and get the credit card charges.

          8  But my understanding is the credit card charges that

          9  are being offered are standard, basic negotiated

         10  charges.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So the 3.75% is not

         12  something that was at the discretion of the TLC?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  I

         14  believe that's not the case.  And, again, there's

         15  some administrative costs that the vendors can pass

         16  on, that they're allowed to pass on as part of their

         17  costs for floating the money and getting the money

         18  to --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, the vendors

         20  passing those costs onto whom?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         22  That would be the driver.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  And that

         24  would be in addition to the 3.75%?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:
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          2  Yeah, that's the 3.75 -- I believe that's the 3.75.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, so how is the

          4  3.75 calculated?  Is it calculated by the TLC based

          5  on industry practices and how much the TLC thinks

          6  these transactions are going to be?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  So

          8  what I'm going to say is, I know there's people in

          9  the room who know exactly the answer, and I'm

         10  probably butchering it, so why don't I ask them to

         11  just provide the answer, and I'll give you the

         12  answer in a second.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, but,

         14  Commissioner, the 3.75%, isn't that in the --

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         16  It's in the contracts. It's basically -- it's a cap

         17  on the contract.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So is that

         19  something that the industry representatives

         20  negotiated and the TLC had nothing to do with that?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         22  The basic of the cap is there's the negotiated fee

         23  that you get from each credit card company which is

         24  different.  Most people are familiar with different

         25  credit card companies charging different amounts. I
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          2  believe that's made up from each credit card company

          3  of a percentage plus a flat fee that they charge for

          4  the transaction.

          5                 In addition, there can be an

          6  additional amount of money that is charged as an

          7  administrative fee for someone acting on your behalf

          8  in taking the risk of doing the merchant if you're

          9  not the merchant, and that is also in there.  So

         10  that when you add it all up, you get the 3.75 as the

         11  cap.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So that's how the

         13  TLC came up with the 3.75?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         15  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So it does not

         17  include any kind of margin?  It is purely a

         18  pass-through cost, and the TLC made an analysis of

         19  what the TLC thinks will be the costs associated

         20  with the credit card use?

         21                 In other words, there's no margin for

         22  cost recovery.  It's just a pure cost of that

         23  transaction that averages out to 3.75 percent?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         25  The idea is that's how much it costs for the
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          2  transaction, and I guess if you're saying there's a

          3  margin, is there someone taking money off the top --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I'm not saying

          5  that.  I'm asking you if there's a --

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          7  I'm trying to understand what the word "margin"

          8  means in this case.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Margin means either

         10  a profit margin for having that transaction take

         11  place, or a margin for recovery of cost of

         12  installing the system.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         14  The margin is not included in here in installing the

         15  system, so there's not a credit card fee that helps

         16  pay for the system.  The credit card fee in the

         17  transaction cost is related to the credit card

         18  transaction cost.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Itself.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         21  Solely.  And it's made up again of -- The bulk of it

         22  is made up of standard credit card transaction fees

         23  that the credit card companies set.  And it could

         24  include, depending on who you are as the driver and

         25  your relationship to the vendor or its relationship

                                                            32

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  to the credit card company, it could include an

          3  administrative fee for processing that information

          4  on your behalf.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, so while

          6  there may not be a profit margin, per se, there is,

          7  a component of that 3.75% is for the taxi company.

          8  It's a charge on the drivers that the taxi company

          9  would be imposing for having that credit card

         10  transaction take place, even though from the

         11  driver's perspective they'd just assume rather get

         12  cash.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         14  Well, that is one fair perspective.  I would like to

         15  point out that currently the industry standard, and

         16  there are taxicabs out there that take credit cards,

         17  they charge a weekly fee on top of 5%.  So, again,

         18  this is a negotiated fee that's much lower than what

         19  the current industry standard is.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  And then

         21  from the perspective of the passengers, is there any

         22  concern that people should have about swiping their

         23  credit cards in a taxi cab?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         25  The answer to that is no. What we've done, and I'll
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          2  talk a little bit about that, and I mentioned all

          3  the testing that has gone through, and right now

          4  we've done significant testing to date, and we're

          5  going to go, like I said, live with 200 vehicles.

          6                 There is two primary standards that

          7  we have asked the vendors to meet.  One is PCI, I

          8  believe it's Credit, what does it stand for again?

          9  It's the Payment Card Industry Standard, and that's

         10  set by the industry itself on understanding exactly

         11  what the standards are for transaction of credit

         12  cards, security safety and whatnot.

         13                 Then there's also a City standard

         14  that we've also adopted, so there's two different

         15  pieces that we've adopted that all the companies

         16  have to be compliant with in order for them to be

         17  allowed to go out and take credit cards from the

         18  public.

         19                 So we believe we're meeting the

         20  highest standards that are currently available and

         21  the highest standards that are out there.  We feel

         22  very confident that the systems are going to be

         23  safe, and I think it's one of those things that we

         24  believe is the core of this.  If people don't feel

         25  it's safe to use credit cards, then they're
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          2  certainly not to use them.  We think that this is

          3  one of the best benefits of this whole program, and

          4  we want to make sure that it is absolutely,

          5  positively safe to use.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Recently there has

          7  been some concern on the part of consumer advocates

          8  that credit card information that is being

          9  transmitted only a short distance, of a matter of a

         10  few feet, could be stolen by someone who had the

         11  equipment to sniff out that transmission.

         12                 Now here we're talking about a much

         13  farther transmission, transmission of miles and

         14  miles of that credit card information.  So is the

         15  TLC confident that those transmissions could not be

         16  intercepted?  And if something did happen where if

         17  someone swiped a credit card in a taxicab, is that

         18  passenger fully protected under their standard

         19  credit card agreements that they would not be liable

         20  for any fraudulent charges that emanated from

         21  someone stealing their credit card information over

         22  the air waves?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         24  Again, the security standards that we're following

         25  and the standards that we're making the vendors
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          2  adhere to are basically the national set standards,

          3  and I think there is also some additional federal

          4  standards on top of that that they must comply with

          5  and be protected to.  So the passenger using a

          6  credit card in a taxicab will have the same

          7  assurances that they have if they're using a credit

          8  card anywhere else.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  As far as

         10  the process of putting this trial balloon out there,

         11  the four companies have all been outfitted with --

         12  I'm sorry, each of the four companies has already

         13  installed their respective equipment in 50 cabs out

         14  there?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         16  No.  The first phase is, each company had to show

         17  that they could run on a limited number of vehicles

         18  the full set of requirements.  That was the first

         19  part of the testing.

         20                 The second part of the testing is

         21  once they prove that they can do everything, that

         22  they meet all of the security requirements, they

         23  pass our passenger surveys and passenger acceptance

         24  tests, that we would then turn the product over to

         25  live Beta testing with actual riding public.  And
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          2  right now we're in the process of the final --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The live Beta

          4  testing, that's the 50 cabs?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          6  That's the 50 cabs for each company.  And during

          7  that period of time we'll be doing a series of

          8  exercises to make sure that the company is able to

          9  promise what they said.  And it's not just providing

         10  service to the passengers, but it's also providing

         11  service to the owners and drivers seeing if their

         12  help desk is 24 hours, that their help desk is up

         13  and running, that their facilities are able to swap

         14  out equipment if it breaks.

         15                 One company is currently out there

         16  rolling out their 50 cabs, and we're on the verge of

         17  having the other three companies have their 50 cabs

         18  out there.  We anticipate in the next couple of

         19  weeks having the 200 vehicles out there driving

         20  around offering services to the public.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  That's why

         22  I'm a little confused by it.  It says in your

         23  testimony these taxicabs, meaning the 200 outfitted

         24  with the full suite, these taxicabs are in-service

         25  vehicles providing service to the public as we
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          2  speak?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          4  Right.  I guess the semantics here as I say the

          5  first of the 200 have rolled out.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Oh, the first of

          7  200.

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          9  Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All right.  So one

         11  of the companies is out there?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         13  One of the companies is out there.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So right now there

         15  are 50 cabs out there outfitted with this new

         16  technology?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  I

         18  think they're not quite at 50. I think there are

         19  about 35.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  It

         22  takes a couple weeks to roll it out.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All right, that's

         24  fine.  But within a short period of time, say within

         25  a month --
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          3  There's going to be 200 vehicles out there, yes,

          4  absolutely.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The 200 test cabs

          6  will be out there?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  I

          8  hope so, and it's based on them passing, again, the

          9  security functionality tests and the passenger

         10  acceptance tests.  I have no reason to doubt that

         11  the other vendors will not be able to do that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So you expect all

         13  four companies will pass this test, passenger

         14  acceptance test?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  I

         16  expect all four companies to enter the next phase of

         17  the 50 vehicles on the road and have 50 vehicles on

         18  the road.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But do they have to

         20  pass the passenger acceptance test before they get

         21  out there on the road?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         23  The passenger acceptance test has already happened.

         24  We've evaluated --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And all the
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          2  companies have passed?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          4  The companies that did not pass -- I would say all

          5  the companies passed.  There's some features that

          6  passengers didn't like in some of the vendors, and

          7  we're working to improve those, and then they work

          8  to change that, and then it gets re-evaluated over

          9  the course of the 50.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         12  But it goes to the public on the wide ranging full

         13  roll out, they will be making changes and have to be

         14  certified by the agency.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Now, the reason I

         16  keep asking about the passenger acceptance is

         17  because we've been kind of down this road before

         18  where it wasn't quite -- people were not quite ready

         19  to have a full-blown public hearing about this

         20  because it was still in the early stages.  In an

         21  early stage where the Taxi and Limousine was looking

         22  at these technology enhancements, there was what was

         23  perceived to be a widespread rejection by the

         24  passengers, that they did not like the system.  This

         25  is what I was told by representatives of the TLC
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          2  that that's why they had abandoned that earlier test

          3  because people didn't like the system.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  I

          5  think you're referring to the taxi t.v. test that

          6  occurred --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I don't remember

          8  the name of it.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         10  There was another initiative that TLC has done, and

         11  I would say that there's been several of initiatives

         12  that have been done and that have all led to kind of

         13  us feeling confident that this was the next and

         14  correct step.

         15                 One of the programs I think you're

         16  referring to is taxi t.v., which was a year-long

         17  pilot program that did run for a year, and at the

         18  end of the year the TLC ended the pilot as planned,

         19  and used that information and knowledge to inform us

         20  on this next project.  It was very helpful in

         21  getting the product we have.  If you notice the

         22  products that are offered today are very

         23  interactive, have things like a mute button, a

         24  button that can turn off the system if the passenger

         25  desires, electronic map.
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          2                 In the other features I think you saw

          3  things that were driven by advertising, and solely

          4  for the reason for advertising, where this is

          5  actually a passenger information monitor with

          6  information the passenger would be interested in. I

          7  think that's the key piece that you're referring to.

          8                 So I would argue these systems are

          9  significantly different than primarily what was

         10  offered previously.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Of course, we need

         12  systems that people like.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         14  Right.  So to that end what we've done is we've done

         15  a number of outreach to random people in the public,

         16  passenger surveys, focus groups, people in the cabs,

         17  people evaluating the systems before they've gone in

         18  the cabs.  The results have been very positive.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Is that the same

         20  thing, the passenger acceptance test and the

         21  passenger survey, or are they two different things?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         23  Well, there's been a series of communications with

         24  passengers throughout.  We did it before we released

         25  the RFP and used that information to help inform us
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          2  on what the RFP should be.  We did an additional

          3  focus group, I believe in the summer before the

          4  vendors actually put it in the cabs.  Then we did

          5  another one. We did a very large one recently when

          6  the vendors had the product in the cabs where

          7  passengers actually got in the cabs and evaluated

          8  the experience of actually being in the vehicle and

          9  using the system.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  It's sounds to me

         11  like you're saying that there have been a few

         12  different iterations of this survey?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         14  Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Testing it with the

         16  customers, making sure that the customers like it.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         18  Right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  We don't want to

         20  impose the cost on the industry of thousands of

         21  dollars for a cab if people don't like it.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         23  Absolutely.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And so when you say

         25  that there's a passenger acceptance test, it implies

                                                            43

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  that you can either pass the test or fail the test.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          4  Right.

          5                 So, the monitors have many different

          6  features to them.  I think again you have to

          7  envision there are parts of it that are just public

          8  service announcements that silently run.  There's

          9  parts of the map that run.  There's credit card

         10  transactions and payment transactions screens.

         11  There's media that's being presented. Some of it's

         12  silent.  Some of it's vocal.  There's a lot of

         13  different phases, and what we ask the passengers to

         14  do is tell us what you think of each piece that a

         15  vendor is offering and whether you like it or not,

         16  and if you don't like it, what can be improved.  If

         17  you do like it, what can be improved.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So it's not really

         19  a pass/fail test?  It's more like a pass test, you

         20  can move onto the next stage.  If you don't pass it,

         21  there are changes that need to be made to the system

         22  before?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  I

         24  would say out of the different features that we ask

         25  the passengers to evaluate the systems on, if

                                                            44

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  someone scored very low and passengers did not like

          3  what they offered, that has to be changed before it

          4  goes onto the next phase.  If the person didn't have

          5  anything that scored very low, they can go on to the

          6  next phase.  We fully anticipate that even with high

          7  scores, the vendors will be always updating and

          8  changing the system to better meet the needs of the

          9  passengers as they better understand how the

         10  passengers interact with the system and use the

         11  system.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All right.  So do

         13  they have to make their system likeable, in other

         14  words, pass this passenger acceptance test before

         15  they put the 50 out on the road?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         17  I'm going to try to make it clear because I hope I'm

         18  not trying to sound --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Obviously I'm being

         20  dense here.

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         22  No, no.  I think it's the way I'm explaining it.

         23                 If the vendor had a part of their

         24  screen, and I would say all the vendors had most of

         25  their screens were accepted and well received, but
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          2  if there's a part of the screen that the passengers

          3  found confusing, or they found the information to be

          4  presented in a way that didn't necessarily make

          5  sense, we're asking the vendors to change that piece

          6  before it goes out for the 50-car test.

          7                 While it's out in the 50-car test, we

          8  have to verify that the new changes actually are

          9  acceptable and meet the minimum standards that we've

         10  set.

         11                 So your question is, how do you move

         12  onto the next of the 50?  The answer is, well, you

         13  make changes based on passenger feedback that

         14  reflect their desire and goals of what they would

         15  like to see.  It gets put out as the 50-car test,

         16  and as the 50-car test runs, and before the vendor

         17  will be authorized to sell to the industry, they

         18  have to show that they've made changes that the

         19  passengers do approve of.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  And then the

         21  measurements of the customer satisfaction, or the

         22  passenger satisfaction, are those going to be made

         23  available to the taxi owners and the public?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         25  Yeah, right now we're in the process of compiling a
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          2  report.  We've given preliminary information to the

          3  vendors because we wanted them to know as soon as

          4  possible.  Once we compile the report, that's

          5  something that we have no problem making available

          6  to whoever would like to see it.  We'll put it up on

          7  our website.  I don't think there's an issue with

          8  that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Great.

         10  There have been some concerns that these screens may

         11  distract the passengers if there's any such thing.

         12  I mean, a passenger is sitting in the back seat, so

         13  they're not part of the driving process.  But on the

         14  other hand, there are concerns that if people are

         15  totally focused on these screens, that they're

         16  basically looking down. They're not aware of what's

         17  happening on the street or up ahead.  Is there any

         18  safety concern that results from having these

         19  screens installed where the passengers have to look

         20  down at the screens?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  I

         22  believe there's not a safety concern.  In the way

         23  the screens are set up, one of things we measured in

         24  testing was the contrast and the ability of the

         25  screens to project in daylight and at night time and
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          2  at dawn and dusk, so the passenger doesn't have to-

          3  I guess you're implying that the passenger would get

          4  very close to the screen and lean down and look, and

          5  if they were in an accident --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Or even if a

          7  passenger was just sitting upright in their seat.

          8  Instead of looking ahead where I think most people

          9   -- I don't know, I don't know how many people

         10  actually look ahead when they're in a taxicab to see

         11  what's ahead on the road.  But if there's sudden

         12  stops, for example, is the fact that a passenger is

         13  looking at the screen going to pose some kind of a

         14  hazard?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         16  Again, I don't think it poses any additional hazard

         17  than what a passenger currently risks by getting in

         18  a taxicab.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay. And do we

         20  have any idea how many taxi passengers wear their

         21  seatbelts?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         23  That's a good question.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  We don't have any

         25  idea?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN: I

          3  don't think there is a idea on that. I always wear

          4  my seatbelt, and I encourage people to wear their

          5  seatbelts.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You get an "A" for

          7  seatbelt wearing.

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          9  Thank you.

         10                 We do test every vehicle to make sure

         11  the seatbelts are readily available, and that is one

         12  of the tests that we do three times a year.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I've seen some of

         14  these systems. At the beginning it does say, "Put

         15  your seatbelt on."

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         17  Absolutely.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  My last

         19  question I am going to defer to my colleagues.  What

         20  about the privacy concerns on the part of the

         21  drivers?  Are they legitimate? Are they a little bit

         22  farfetched?  What is the TLC's position on privacy

         23  issues?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         25  Privacy concerns have to do with the automatic trip
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          2  sheet, I believe.  Right now drivers are required to

          3  record on a piece of paper, usually on a clipboard,

          4  they are required to record where every trip starts,

          5  every trip ends, the time the trip starts, the time

          6  the trip ends, the number of passengers and the

          7  final fare. They are also supposed to record off

          8  duty and many things throughout the day.

          9                 All we've required through the

         10  automatic trip sheet process is that the same data

         11  be collected, not by writing it, in fact, the

         12  current rule states that it must be written in ink,

         13  in black ink, I believe.  The idea is to get rid of

         14  that altogether and just allow that information to

         15  be collected as the taxicab driver goes through the

         16  motions of basically turning the meter on and

         17  turning the meter off.

         18                 So the information the TLC will be

         19  collecting and the information that we'll have

         20  access to is exactly the same information that we

         21  currently have access to today. Although it will be

         22  presented in a much more, I would argue it's an

         23  easier format.  It's not in the form of thousands of

         24  trip sheets that are paper form.  It would be

         25  electronic form and something that we could easily
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          2  look at and understand information, and query data

          3  that we absolutely need to understand the policies

          4  and decisions that we are making.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So I guess the TLC

          6  doesn't think that there should be any privacy

          7  issues?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          9  Again, we are tracking exactly what we track now.

         10  I'll give you an example.  If a vehicle picked me up

         11  outside of this building and the trip was a

         12  15-minute trip and ended up outside the building

         13  exactly where it started, all that TLC is going to

         14  know is that the trip started at 250 Broadway and

         15  ended at 250 Broadway.  It will not know, and in

         16  fact we're not going to be that exact, we're going

         17  to know the general vicinity that it is basically

         18  around that intersection.  We will not know if the

         19  car moved. We will not know if the car circled

         20  around City Hall Park.  We will not know if the car

         21  circled around via Church Street.  We will not know

         22  where it went.  We will just know where the trip

         23  started and where the trip ended.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay. Even though

         25  the GPS device is working constantly since the
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          2  position of the vehicle is being shown on the map

          3  for the passenger?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          5  That is correct. The data that we are getting will

          6  only be limited to trip sheet data.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But is that simply

          8  the TLC's intent for now?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  I

         10  think the information that we are going to get will

         11  provide us with a wealth of data that will provide

         12  almost all the information that we'll need to do

         13  policy information and collection.  We don't have an

         14  intent to track 13,000 vehicles on a big screen and

         15  watching them move and where they go and whatnot.

         16  That's not a concern of ours.  The drivers are

         17  professionals that provide professional service.

         18  The amount of rides the passengers get and the

         19  complaints we get is minuscule.  I think they do a

         20  great job.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And then with

         22  regard to the trip data that the TLC currently gets,

         23  what do you do with that data today?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         25  Well, typically the trip data, it's required to be
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          2  kept for three years.  More often than not it spends

          3  its life hopefully in a secure environment that it

          4  doesn't get ruined.  It only sees the light of day

          5  if there is a need for it, which could be court, or

          6  it could be that TLC does analysis.  Sometimes we

          7  call for random trip sheets, and we look at the data

          8  kind of to see what's going on.  Basically those are

          9  what the trip sheet data does right now.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  But there is

         11  no analysis of -- I think in your testimony you

         12  talked about -- you didn't mention anything about

         13  court.  You talked about trying to figure out what

         14  kinds of service or where the service is being

         15  provided for the riding public.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         17  Sure. That's what we do. When a driver appears

         18  usually typically for consumer complaints, the

         19  driver brings the trip sheet to verify that they

         20  were or were not the driver.  And that's typically

         21  where a trip sheet would be used at a TLC

         22  adjudications process. Verification of "I was the

         23  driver."  So frequently drivers use the trip sheets

         24  to say, hey, listen, I wasn't the driver; I wasn't

         25  in that area.  Here's my trip sheet; take a look.
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          2  And sometimes drivers say, yeah, here's my trip

          3  sheet.  It could have been me.  I was in that area

          4  at that time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So the TLC doesn't

          6  really use the data that it has currently to

          7  evaluate the effectiveness of taxicabs in serving

          8  the public?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         10  And we again we absolutely do, but the scale of data

         11  that we do use, if you put it in perspective, there

         12  is about 650,000 trips worth of data a day.  So to

         13  take 650,000 trips worth of data and to try to

         14  figure out what the driver wrote as location start

         15  time and location end time, which is, typically they

         16  are driving, so it's not the most legible.  To enter

         17  that data for anyone it would be basically, it's not

         18  something that's really possible.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So what you're

         20  saying then is the data is not actually available.

         21  Which is why --

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  We

         23  usually utilize more meter data.  And meter data is

         24  general data.  So, for example, I could tell you how

         25  many trips over a four-month period a cab did, but I
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          2  can't necessarily tell you how many trips a cab did

          3  per day.  And with this data we'll actually be able

          4  to tell you on average cabs work -- the average cab

          5  is on the road five days a week, as opposed to seven

          6  days a week.  And we just don't know that

          7  information as fact.  We know it as more working

          8  with the industry does understand best practices.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Let me turn

         10  it over to my colleague Council Member Daniel

         11  Garodnick, who has questions. Let me also note for

         12  the record that Council Member Darlene Mealy has

         13  joined us from Brooklyn.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Thank you,

         15  Chair Liu, and Commissioner and your team, thank you

         16  for being here.  I also want to recognize, of

         17  course, the drivers who are here and members of the

         18  public.  We thank you all.  These are some difficult

         19  issues, and I, for one, am interested in the ways

         20  that we can improve the experience for taxi riders,

         21  and using technology to do that is certainly an

         22  appropriate thing to explore.

         23                 But we need to make sure that we do

         24  it in the right way, I think.  We all experienced

         25  the use of the celebrities to tell us to remember to
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          2  buckle our seatbelts a number of years ago, which I

          3  regarded as an annoyance.  I know a lot of people

          4  did.  I think we need to make sure the improvements

          5  in technology do not become an annoyance for the

          6  riding public, and that the steps that we take are

          7  tailored in that way, and that they are limited, and

          8  that the passengers themselves have maximum amount

          9  of control as to what they subject themselves to or

         10  not.

         11                 With that in mind I really just

         12  wanted to ask you a few questions about really the

         13  passenger experience. And the first one is really

         14  along the lines of what I was getting at before,

         15  which is, what's going to happen when you get into

         16  the taxi at the beginning of a ride?  I know you

         17  described a silent welcoming prologue in your

         18  testimony.  What does that look like for a

         19  passenger, and what are your abilities to change

         20  that?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         22  That is information, I would say the silent prologue

         23  basically is replacing the current stickers that

         24  you'd see in the back of the cab.  So if you think

         25  about what's in the back of the cab now, aside from
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          2  the map there is a passenger bill of rights, there

          3  is some fare information, there's a couple of other

          4  pieces of information that are on stickers.  So if

          5  you can envision walking into the cab being

          6  welcomed, silently scrolling through, saying, you're

          7  in a New York City taxicab, and basically very

          8  quickly reminding you to buckle your seat belt, get

          9  a receipt, watch out for bikes when you exit, exit

         10  curbside.  And then you'll be faced with a series of

         11  buttons if you so desire.

         12                 So for someone who might live in

         13  Manhattan, who rides cabs all the time, they've seen

         14  enough.  They don't know to see anymore.  But

         15  someone who might be in the cabs for the first time

         16  would be prompted, if they so desired, to maybe

         17  learn in detail what the fare is.  So there is a

         18  button to push and you can see in detail what the

         19  fare is.

         20                 You might have other interest in --

         21  we see this area expanding to include other TLC

         22  rules and things if that's what people so desire to

         23  see.  But basically it's just a welcome.  It's

         24  letting you know you're in a cab, basic fare

         25  information, and letting you know that it takes
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          2  credit cards, and then saying, buckle your seatbelt

          3  and be careful.  And it doesn't say anything.  It's

          4  all done visually.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Is there

          6  an optional audio component?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          8  For this part there is no audio for this.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  For this

         10  part.  But there is an audio for another part?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         12  Well, what happens is in the beginning you see the

         13  TLC mandated piece, and you can't turn that off.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Okay.

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  We

         16  want you to see, buckle your seatbelt, and we want

         17  to make sure you understand the basic stuff.  At the

         18  end of the trip there is also a similar message that

         19  basically says, goodbye, take a receipt, exit

         20  curbside, that you can also not turn off.

         21                 If you so desire, so this is the

         22  passenger going through the next step, the TLC piece

         23  phases out, and then the media that each vendor, if

         24  they have a contract that allows them to provide

         25  media, will then present itself.
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          2                 And within this piece, a typical

          3  vendor would be, if you picture basically a mix of

          4  an ATM machine and basically a web browser, where

          5  there's buttons that allow you to do certain things

          6  and go certain places.  Some of it's going to be

          7  video, so it might be short clips that the vendor

          8  has determined people in cabs are interested in

          9  seeing.  It could be something like a movie trailer.

         10  It could be something that's interesting for New

         11  Yorkers, health tips.  Again, it's for them to

         12  determine what's interesting.  It could be a silent

         13  image of weather, sports, entertainment news.  And

         14  they have choice of picking and choosing what they

         15  want to see.  If they don't want to see anything,

         16  they can hit mute or off.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Now, in

         18  the midst of all those decisions, will a passenger

         19  be subjected to advertisements?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         21  Sure.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Now, those

         23  advertisements are determined by the vendors you

         24  have selected already?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:
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          2  That's right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  So just

          4  take me through the process then.  I sit down.  I

          5  have the quiet visual experience of the warnings

          6  that we want to make sure everybody sees.  Then I'm

          7  going to see a screen which will allow me through an

          8  ATM-like or web browser-like experience to chose an

          9  option.  While I'm sitting there and choosing, will

         10  I be looking at ads from Coca Cola and Ford and

         11  whoever else? Will I be seeing messages of that type

         12  while I'm sitting there and deciding?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         14  Likely, yes.  And, again, each vendor has a slightly

         15  different model, but if they are using

         16  advertisements to help offset, you could be seeing

         17  advertisements that -- some have noise and some are

         18  silent.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Well, I'll

         20  tell you that's a concern for me because I think

         21  that really there are a lot of ways for us to make

         22  this a better experience for passengers, and there

         23  is a lot of what we are talking about here that does

         24  that.  And I do think that the ability to pay by

         25  credit card is one of those things.  The ability to
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          2  be able to go back and find, with more ease, a lost

          3  package.  Those are all benefits.  But to be

          4  subjected to, without necessarily knowing, you did

          5  say you could shut it off or mute or whatever.  But

          6  people might not realize that right off the bat, or

          7  they might be busy.  But the idea of being

          8  constantly subjected to advertising is something

          9  that I would say would be a concern of mine.

         10                 There is no way for a prior passenger

         11   -- I just want to make sure of this -- a prior

         12  passenger who decided to avail themselves of a video

         13  or some sort of audio function to leave it on and

         14  then start a new trip and walk into a taxicab and

         15  have that be their experience?  Is that right?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         17  The meter on/off sets it.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  All right.

         19    That's what I thought you were going to say, and

         20  I'm glad to hear that.

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         22  When the meter isn't engaged, the system is off.

         23  And one of the problems that we heard from drivers

         24  was how the system, in the old systems, always ran

         25  all day long and was an endless loop.  The driver
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          2  heard it all the time even if they didn't have trip.

          3  I think that's important that isn't the case.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Agreed.

          5                 The concerns for passengers for

          6  swiping the card.  I think Chair Liu asked a very

          7  good question about a feeling of confidence that

          8  what you are doing by using personal financial

          9  information in the back of a taxi is not going to be

         10  stolen in any way or taken advantage of in any way,

         11  not by the driver, but by any outside source.  You

         12  mentioned a couple of ways for us to feel confident

         13  the PCI system, the City standard that you described

         14  in your testimony, but how do we insure that

         15  consumers themselves know that they are protected in

         16  the way that they would be protected by any other

         17  credit card transaction?  Perhaps even more if the

         18  City's adding an additional layer of protection onto

         19  this system?   How do customers, how do taxi riders

         20  know, or how will they know that that is part of

         21  this experience?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         23  You raise a good question.  A good point.  I don't

         24  think that's information that we are necessarily

         25  planning to distribute.  I think the thought was if
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          2  we're even offering credit cards that there is a

          3  level of security.  And I think what you're saying

          4  is maybe that's not a good assumption, so it's

          5  something that obviously when you say we collect --

          6  you can use your credit card, we can also point out

          7  the securities and measures that have been taken.

          8  It's a fair point.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  I think

         10  that there is something that we will need to do in

         11  order for -- take me as one taxi rider in New York

         12  City.  I will have a level of discomfort, without

         13  knowing, I mean I know now what you're doing, but

         14  without knowing, I would have a level of discomfort

         15  in using the system, not knowing that I am protected

         16  by additional levels of security, which you have

         17  engaged.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         19  You make a very fair point.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  But I

         21  think that we should know that.

         22                 A couple of more issues here.  You

         23  described in your testimony accessing a lost bag.

         24  So I can get in a taxi in front of 250 Broadway

         25  today, and I take it uptown to 92nd street and 1st
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          2  Avenue, and I leave a bag in the cab.  I call 311

          3  and I say I went from City Hall up to 92nd street

          4  and 1st Avenue today and I left a bag.  Now, in your

          5  testimony you described a very clean and crisp

          6  system whereby the 311 operator will say, thank you

          7  for telling us where you traveled from and to and

          8  approximately what time of day.  Here is your taxi.

          9  Now, I'm exaggerating a little bit, but my question

         10  for you is this:  How closely will there be an

         11  interaction between the information that the TLC

         12  has, and that you described that as basically the

         13  trip log, the start and the end and the time of the

         14  day, which is what is collected presently, but now

         15  would be in an electronic form. That information

         16  communicated to the 311 system, and would that be

         17  something which would be regularly provided, or

         18  would that have to happen on request from 311?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  I

         20  see your concerns. It's actually not going to work

         21  exactly as you laid out. Right now, the way it

         22  currently works is information is collected by 311

         23  and typically transferred to TLC to then research

         24  the cab companies.  If the person doesn't know the

         25  medallion, the person doesn't really know much other
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          2  than they lost a bag and they can describe the bag.

          3  It involves lots of faxing, a couple phone calls to

          4  the local precincts, and we hope for the best.

          5                 What's going to happen now, if you

          6  envision something similar, is communication from

          7  311 to TLC.  Then what we're going to do is query,

          8  and, again, we're not going to have the exact trip

          9  sheet, but the trip sheets data exists that each

         10  vendor's on their databases, and we're going to

         11  query their databases.  Because, remember, we don't

         12  really care -- I don't care personally what cab it

         13  is.  I just want to make sure that that cab gets a

         14  text message that's there. We're not going know.

         15                 There's two ways you can do it.  One

         16  is based on where the trip started, and one is based

         17  on where the trip ended.  We typically find that

         18  passengers really know where they got out.  They

         19  don't necessarily know where they got in. It might

         20  have been 250 Broadway, but you might have been

         21  around the corner.

         22                 So the idea is we're going to focus

         23  on where you got out and what time.  We're going to

         24  query the systems to establish what vehicles, you

         25  know, we're not going to know. The system will find
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          2  the vehicle that ended their trip at that location

          3  within a parameter of a quarter mile or something at

          4  that time and that location. In this case, I think

          5  you said 92nd and 1st, and a text message will go.

          6  It will go to the driver.  If the driver is in a

          7  stopped position, or when they become stopped, a

          8  text message will pop up and say, hey, is there in

          9  your back?  And they have preprogrammed answers that

         10  they can hit back.  They don't have to type.  It

         11  will either be yes or no. If it's a yes, then your

         12  communication will come back to the driver saying,

         13  here's how you can -- typically people say, here's

         14  my cell number.  The drivers love to do the

         15  connection cause it usually leads to a nice thank

         16  you.

         17                 So that's how we envision this

         18  happening.  So in terms of, is it going to be a trip

         19  sheet that is sitting there and we're going to

         20  scroll through trip sheets manually. No, the trip

         21  sheet is created electronically.  There is a whole

         22  place that this exists, and we're going to query the

         23  data.  Out will come the five or six cabs that maybe

         24  dropped someone off within a 20 minute or half hour

         25  period at 92nd and 1st.  Each one of them will get a
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          2  text message requesting, asking the driver, "Hey

          3  take a look," and then --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  And that

          5  will come back.  So really once it's communicated to

          6  311, they're going really send it over to you, and

          7  you're going to take it over from that point.

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  At

          9  least initially.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Okay.  And

         11  then you send out your 20 text messages, you get a

         12  response.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         14  Well, yes.  No, the text messages would happen

         15  automatically.  We just query the systems...

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  And then

         17  it goes out.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         19  Yeah.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  And then

         21  you get the response, and you have the taxi which

         22  actually has a bag in it, and then it will be the

         23  TLC or 311 --

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         25  The TLC would basically say here's the -- So when
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          2  311 takes it, they're like how would you like to be

          3  contacted?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  I see and

          5  then --

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          7  That information then would get --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: But it

          9  would come from the TLC not from 311?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         11  Right, and the text message would show it.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Okay.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         14  And then ideally we'd love to have 311 do all these

         15  operations but until the system is --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  I

         17  understand.

         18                 Now, just on another issue of

         19  passenger security.  Clearly, there is a lot of

         20  information, a lot more information electronically

         21  that will be available out there.  The drivers have

         22  articulated some concern about the TLC knowing

         23  electronically the start and the stop, the time of

         24  day and all the rest of it.  But it also should be

         25  noted for passengers who decide to avail themselves
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          2  of a credit card function in a taxi, that they, too,

          3  will have their information recorded as to where

          4  they were start and stop, and what time of day, if

          5  they decide to use a credit card, is that correct?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          7  That's actually not correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Okay, then

          9  please help me.

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         11  The way the contract is structured is those two

         12  lines of data absolutely cannot be put together and

         13  tracked.  The vendors can't sell the data.  They

         14  can't put it together that way.  There is trip

         15  information and then there is the credit card

         16  information and the two cannot be put together.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Okay.  But

         18  just so I understand, but if a court were to

         19  subpoena a record from an individual, let's say they

         20  are concerned about what somebody was up to on

         21  January 4th, traveling from 250 Broadway to 92nd and

         22  1st, and they were to subpoena a credit card record

         23  to see if there were possibly any taxi trips taken.

         24  And they were to similarly subpoena information from

         25  the TLC.  There is a way for that information to be
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          2  reconciled, even if it were to be kept separately,

          3  isn't that right?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          5  You're suggesting there is a subpoena for a credit

          6  card record.  It gets established that a taxicab was

          7  taken.  Therefore, a taxicab was taken and then that

          8  subpoena is for "Show us all records of dropoffs."

          9  The record will only show you took a cab.  It won't

         10  show where it dropped you off.  So how would the

         11  subpoena then be used?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Well,

         13  let's say you can put the time of day together.

         14  Look, I'm not trying to build a legal case.

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         16  No, I'm curious.  It's only 2:30, show us all the

         17  records of credit card transactions.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Okay.

         19  Well, you would obviously be looking at an

         20  individual, right?  If this were involved in a legal

         21  matter between people.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         23  Sure.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Or

         25  parties, or whatever it is.  You would look for the
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          2  information on a credit card which would show that a

          3  trip was taken somewhere. And if you knew a point of

          4  origin or anything like that, you could actually

          5  look and see what during that time because the time

          6  would be noted a credit card presumably.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          8  Yeah, but if you knew the point of origin, then you

          9  kind of already know a lot of the information you

         10  want.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Well, you

         12  know some. But I guess my point of all of this is,

         13  it is at some point reconcilable, but it is not

         14  being kept, and this is important. You clarified

         15  something for me.  It is not being kept together.

         16  It is not information which is being held so that

         17  you could say, X person traveled from point A to

         18  point B on this day because they used their credit

         19  card.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         21  Right.  And there's no intent to send the public

         22  updates on their cab usage.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Well, I

         24  think that's an important point.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  We
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          2  want that to be anonymous, as it's always been.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Okay.  I'm

          4  abusing my privilege.  Let me just ask you the last

          5  one.  Can I just get one last one?

          6                 The qualified service centers for

          7  repairs, you said that each of your vendors has --

          8  there's a requirement that they have these service

          9  centers.  How many service centers do they need to

         10  have?  What are the requirements that you have

         11  imposed on them for repairs?  I mean, if you have my

         12  nightmare scenario where I walk into that taxi and

         13  it's blaring the Coca Cola advertisement which the

         14  person before me decided that they wanted to listen

         15  to so desperately, and all I want is peace and quiet

         16  of nothing, and it's broken.  How quickly do they

         17  need to do it, and how many service centers do they

         18  need to have?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         20  You're asking a couple of different questions all

         21  within there.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  I am.

         23  It's because my Chair is -- I'm at the end, so I'm

         24  cheating a little bit.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:
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          2  It's a good question. One of the first we were very

          3  concerned about was what's the driver's

          4  responsibility if they're driving around with a

          5  system that's broken and they don't even know about

          6  it.  So they might not even know.  Because one of

          7  the problems that drivers often said is, I don't

          8  know something's wrong, why are you always giving me

          9  summonses?  So the driver basically has a

         10  responsibility if the system's not working, to

         11  report it to the vendor.  The vendor has a

         12  responsibility to give the driver a time in which

         13  the system can be fixed within 48 hours.  It can be

         14  one hour, but it has to be within 48 hours, so it

         15  certainly can be quicker.  The driver has a

         16  responsibility to ensure that the vehicle gets there

         17  for their appointment.  As long as the driver has

         18  reported that incident, and they haven't missed

         19  their appointment, they can't be summonsed.  The

         20  vendor and the owner are responsible for making sure

         21  the system works, so it's more on the vendor's side

         22  in this case that the system's not working.

         23                 The driver then drives to the

         24  facility.  You asked how many there are.  Typically,

         25  I believe, they were going to have one major
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          2  facility, and some are doing it a little

          3  differently.  Some are authorizing --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  One each

          5   --

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          7  Well, some will have one major, and some are

          8  authorizing other individuals to do installation,

          9  so, again, I think if it's someone who runs multiple

         10  taxicabs, they might want the ability to swap out

         11  themselves.  The way it's designed is for

         12  anticipation that if one part of it doesn't work,

         13  you can easily replace it with another part, so the

         14  parts are interchangeable.  Again, that's one of the

         15  things -- when you say integrated, it should be

         16  integrated.  It's not like you have to do a full

         17  three-hour install kind of thing.  We hope that it

         18  happens very quickly, depending on what's not

         19  working.

         20                 So the driver has the responsibility

         21  to bring it and get it repaired as quickly as

         22  possible.  If the system's not working, and you're

         23  in the back of the cab, obviously, you call 311 and

         24  file the complaint, and then we immediately notify.

         25                 There's also a lot of tests basically
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          2  that help us understand if a vehicle system isn't

          3  working properly, as well as the tests we do three

          4  times a year with each vehicle. So there's a lot of

          5  information that we'll be getting that will indicate

          6  if the system's not working properly.  There's a lot

          7  of our own personal tests that we'll be getting in

          8  the actual cab and making sure that the basic system

          9  works, as well as passengers letting us know that if

         10  the Coca Cola ad is blaring and can't be turned off,

         11  absolutely we don't want that to be the experience,

         12  and make sure those cabs get fixed appropriately.

         13                 One of the things we required of all

         14  vendors is that they have the infrastructure and the

         15  capability to actually maintain and fix the number

         16  of vehicles that they think they're going to

         17  actually have under contract.  If they couldn't do

         18  that, that was one of things that we figured was

         19  really important and we stress very heavily in the

         20  contracting process.

         21                 So we believe we have a system that's

         22  fair to the drivers, balances the fact that it might

         23  not always be working but also fair to the

         24  passengers and gives some leeway for the system to

         25  be fixed but not punishing people and have people
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          2  just drive around with the system broken.  If the

          3  system's broken, it needs to get fixed.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Thank you

          5  very much. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          7  Member Garodnick.  We have questions from Council

          8  Member Joe Addabbo, and we've been joined by Council

          9  Member Miguel Martinez from Manhattan.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chair. I want to commend the staff of this

         12  Committee for the work that they have done with this

         13  hearing, and Commissioner Salkin, I want to thank

         14  you and TLC for being here and the efforts that you

         15  have made regarding this issue.

         16                 While I believe we're on the cusp or

         17  the cutting edge of improving ridership experience

         18  in our cabs, I do have also some concerns.

         19                 We have been talking so far about

         20  passengers who have all their facilities.  I know

         21  that TLC has made great strides with those

         22  passengers who have disabilities.  What

         23  accommodations have been made with these systems for

         24  those who don't have all their facilities, the sight

         25  impaired and the hearing impaired?  What
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          2  accommodations have been made for those individuals

          3  who may use our taxicabs?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  We

          5  have met with different advocacy groups.  We've met

          6  with the Mayor's Office of The Peoples With

          7  Disabilities, and we want to make sure that the

          8  system meets the requirements that are needed but

          9  really sometimes goes above and beyond.

         10                 As I suggested, part of it is

         11  insuring the print and the visibility of the screen

         12  is as such that people who have vision impairment

         13  can also see it.  That's something we've made sure

         14  is there.

         15                 In addition, people who have trouble

         16  hearing or can't hear, you have a volume button and

         17  you also have a system that runs also as well on

         18  sight without the volume.  It kind of stands alone.

         19                 So the ability of the core

         20  information to be made available to the public we

         21  feel is important and, again, the core information

         22  from my perspective is really the fare information,

         23  the information the passenger would like to know

         24  about the activity they are undertaking, as well as

         25  the map. As far as the media and advertisements of

                                                            77

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  Coco Cola, we hope that if they really want to see

          3  it, that they could see it, but they might not be

          4  able to hear it if it's a video that's playing.  But

          5  we certainly anticipate them being able to see it

          6  based on the size of the screens and the contrast.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  For those

          8  who are hearing impaired, many times when you put a

          9  TV set on mute, a scroll or script comes up.  Could

         10  that be incorporated into the screens that maybe the

         11  script on the bottom of the screen? Could that be

         12  possibly incorporated?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  I

         14  imagine it's something that's possible.  It's not

         15  something that we've discussed. It's something I can

         16  look into.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  I appreciate

         18  it. Lastly, just to re-visit an issue regarding the

         19  medallion owners and the drivers.  It's not just the

         20  cost of the unit. Obviously, there's repair costs.

         21  There's modifications. There's maintenance costs.  I

         22  just want to re-visit again that issue about input.

         23                 During this testing program and prior

         24  to during the discussions along with the fare

         25  increase, are you comfortable to say that TLC has
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          2  basically crossed every T, dotted every I regarding

          3  input with medallion owners and drivers is as it

          4  pertains to every cost with this system?  Not just

          5  the initial cost but every cost, repair, like I

          6  mentioned earlier, repair, maintenance and so forth.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  I

          8  believe we got very good feedback.  When we reached

          9  out, and got very good feedback from the different

         10  participants that you listed from the industry who

         11  are going to be providing the service or part of

         12  providing the service.  What we did is, through the

         13  competitive process of the procurement, is we

         14  basically said in our request for a proposal to the

         15  vendors, tell us what services you're going to

         16  provide, show us the highest level you can give us.

         17  The people with the best services are the ones we're

         18  going to pick.

         19                 Counsel reminds we did driver focus

         20  groups, and we reached out to the industry and had a

         21  lot of public meetings and specific meetings with

         22  different groups to ensure that what we were asking

         23  the vendors to provide was something that would meet

         24  their concerns.  I believe that what we put together

         25  is something that does meet their concerns.  There
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          2  absolutely is costs associated with this project.

          3  We have not hidden that, and we don't try to shy

          4  away from that, but we believe that the cost is very

          5  reasonable considering that the amount of money that

          6  the industry got as a part of the fare changes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  When we talk

          8  about costs, we're talking about all costs, up front

          9  and future costs?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         11  The costs have to be very clearly stated.  One of

         12  things that we did in this contract, and I think is

         13  unique to the industry that TLC hasn't done before,

         14  is the vendors are also required -- we have a

         15  contracting language that clearly dictates to the

         16  vendors and how they're supposed to sign a contract

         17  with the owners.  Part of that will be clearly

         18  delineated in what the costs are.

         19                 Frequently, what we have found in the

         20  industry is, people don't always know exactly what

         21  their costs are. They sign an agreement, but they

         22  didn't know exactly the details, basically a line

         23  item in those items.  So we are requiring the

         24  vendors to offer a basic standard contract, if you

         25  will, that is required to have specific information
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          2  to the owners.  So the owners know exactly what

          3  they're getting into. So in terms of them knowing

          4  what the total cost of the program is or could be,

          5  we want that to be absolutely known.  What we've

          6  encouraged everyone who is involved is the medallion

          7  owner and drivers is to reach out to the different

          8  vendors and understand what those costs are and how

          9  they might utilize the system, or how much it might

         10  cost them over the lifetime of the contract.

         11                 I think it's very important to note

         12  that all four vendors are very different although to

         13  the public they're going to look similar to how they

         14  relate and how they interact with the drivers and

         15  the owners is very different.  We've encouraged, and

         16  I'll encourage everyone here again today, because I

         17  know there's a lot of people in the industry, to go

         18  out and do research and find the best product for

         19  you.  We compare it a little bit to cell phone

         20  shopping.  Even when you find the right plan, you

         21  still have to find the right cell phone.  You have

         22  to find what works for you.  The vendors offer many

         23  different options.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you

         25  very much, Commissioner.  I look forward to working
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          2  with you and this Committee for the sake of our

          3  ridership and the drivers and the owners.  Thank you

          4  very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          6  Member Addabbo.

          7                 Questions from Council Member Mealy.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Good morning.

          9  I'll be very brief.  Thank you, Chair, for this

         10  hearing and our Commission and TLC and the drivers.

         11  I have just three quick questions.  Are the taxi

         12  drivers and owners, are they private employees?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         14  Well, the owners, I guess, are owners.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Well, the

         16  drivers are private employees?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         18  The drivers in the taxicab industry are private

         19  contractors.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Private

         21  contractors.  So if the private owner, well the

         22  owner, if they fill, since this is City of One and

         23  everyone's voice should be heard, is it not fair

         24  that if the owners do not want this enhancement,

         25  could you let me know, do they have to pay for it
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          2  just as well? Some of these enhancements?  Or TLC is

          3  paying solely for this?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          5  The idea is that the owner of the medallion is

          6  responsible for insuring that the enhancement is

          7  installed in the vehicle.  We anticipate the owners

          8  brunting the main cost of putting these systems in.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  So if the

         10  owners do not want this, isn't it their right to

         11  reject this?  Why do they have to have this

         12  installation and pay for these extra expenses if

         13  they do not want it?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         15  Well, I would argue there's probably a lot of things

         16  that the owners haven't wanted through the years,

         17  but the TLC as a regulatory body has often focused

         18  on customer service and product being offered to the

         19  public to make sure things are better.  I think if

         20  you think about some of the more recent improvements

         21  requiring rear air conditioning, requiring the

         22  vehicles to be bigger, requiring vehicles to have

         23  clean air and accessibility --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Wheelchair

         25  accessibility just as well.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  I

          3  just said yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Where it's not

          5  all over the City as of yet.  So if the owners feel

          6  they do not want this, it should be their option not

          7  to.  That's just one of my things saying.

          8                 And two, with this credit card, if

          9  someone comes in with maybe an American Express, do

         10  those machines take American Express?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         12  The systems are required to take all major credit

         13  cards.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  All major

         15  credit cards.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         17  And American Express is included in that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  So do you have

         19  a contingency plan if their card is overdrawn, and

         20  they don't have any cash money?  Who has to pay for

         21  that?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         23  All right.  I think you're referring to the risk of

         24  taking a trip and having at the end of the trip the

         25  passenger not having enough funds, and that risk
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          2  still rests with the taxicab driver.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  So they would

          4  have to take on that cost?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  As

          6  they do, if the person is unable to pay the fare,

          7  yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Is that fair

          9  to the owners and the taxi drivers?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         11  Again, the taxi drivers face that risk every day,

         12  and I often hear stories about people getting out of

         13  the cab and not paying.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Yes, but this

         15  is even bigger with the credit card, oh, do they say

         16  if they are going to pay for cash or credit card

         17  when they get in?  No, so you really don't know.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         19  Yes, it's a decision they have at the end.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  So you really

         21  don't know.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         23  Well, they also don't mention -- Yes, that's

         24  correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  I hear that
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          2  that information, just the same way you did the

          3  cameras, that was only a test run, right?  The

          4  cameras in the taxis?  For awhile?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          6  There are cameras.  Taxi cabs can have cameras

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  You did a test

          8  pilot.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         10  And livery vehicles have cameras.  These are cameras

         11  that focus on safety.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Yes.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         14  That are put in the back. There are cameras that are

         15  authorized to be in vehicles that the TLC regulates.

         16  Taxicabs and in livery vehicles.  There's a small

         17  number of taxicabs that can have cameras, but

         18  there's basically livery vehicles, anyone that would

         19  like to have a camera can have a camera.  So I

         20  wouldn't call it a pilot project.  It's an approved

         21  method of security and securing the driver and

         22  protecting the driver.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  I think

         24  someone did answer this question.  With all that

         25  data that you have, what do you do with it
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          2  afterwards?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          4  Well, I'm very excited to have the data because

          5  frequently I'll take, last year, for example, we got

          6  petitioned several times by drivers in different

          7  parts of the industry that prices were going too

          8  high on certain parts of their expenses, namely gas,

          9  and that the fare had to be changed.  And one of the

         10  things that my staff has to do, and the staff of the

         11  TLC spends a lot of time doing, is understanding

         12  exactly the economics of the drivers and of the

         13  industry and how much the passengers are paying and

         14  how that relates.  To do that now is a very onerous

         15  task.  We have to go into paper records and call out

         16  paper records.  We have to do some focus groups and

         17  reach out and get information.  What we'll be able

         18  to do now is have a much better understanding of

         19  exactly what is happening.  In fact, we'll be able

         20  to take it to another level.

         21                 So one thing I'm very interested in

         22  knowing is, for example, how many cabs are exactly

         23  on the road after 12:00 o'clock at night, from 12:00

         24  to 5:00 in the morning?  Is it 13,000?  Is it 4,000?

         25  Is that the right number?  Do we want more as a
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          2  public policy?  Is it a safety issue because people

          3  feel like if they are on the streets they would like

          4  to have that transportation available?  I don't

          5  know.  These are things --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  So that is

          7  kind of going into their privacy then?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          9  No, again, I won't know who the cab is.  I'll just

         10  know if the cabs are on the road earning money.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Well, you

         12  never know. You have to think ahead of the game

         13  almost.  Will any repercussion come if maybe a taxi

         14  driver went to the side and maybe fell asleep?  Will

         15  any repercussion come to them with all this data?

         16  Because you know where they are every minute.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         18  No, we're not going to know where they are.  All I'm

         19  going to know is where a trip starts and where a

         20  trip ends.  If a cab driver wants to take their car,

         21  and I remember last year I was up in Montauk.  I saw

         22  a yellow taxicab.  We're not going to know it's

         23  there. The cabs can do whatever they want.  They're

         24  private contractors, or they own their own vehicles.

         25  They can do whatever they want.  We got a call
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          2  recently from Canada, I think in Toronto, and they

          3  said, the police said "there is a taxicab here.  We

          4  called the fleet.  The fleet said that the person is

          5  all paid.  We don't care where it is.  Again, when

          6  the driver has their vehicle, they can do whatever

          7  they want. If they don't want earn money, they don't

          8  have to earn money doing that.  So all we're going

          9  to know is where the trip starts and where the trip

         10  ends.  I'm not going to know what they do between.

         11  I'm not going to know in between any of those two

         12  points.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Okay. I look

         14  forward to seeing the outcome of this.  Thank you.

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         16  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         18  Member Mealy. We've joined by Council Member Jessica

         19  Lappin from Manhattan, and we have questions from

         20  Council Member Miguel Martinez.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chairman.  Thank you, First Deputy Commissioner

         23  Salkin.  I have two questions, one having to do with

         24  safety.

         25                 How would the system enable the
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          2  Police Department or yourself if there is an issue

          3  of safety with a driver?  Would you be able to track

          4  the exact location of that vehicle?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  As

          6  it currently works, so you're saying if the driver

          7  is in danger?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Correct.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         10  And they notify, somehow that they are in trouble.

         11  One of the things that there was a lot of discussion

         12  about was panic buttons, and should there be a panic

         13  button.  And a lot of those vendors offered

         14  something like that, but it was determined in the

         15  end by both the drivers and Police Department that

         16  that's not something they wanted.  What every cab

         17  has right now is a trouble light in the back that

         18  everyone thought was a better way of indicating on

         19  the spot where the trouble was.  If someone came to

         20  us, the TLC and said, hey, there's a cab out there;

         21  something's going on.  Maybe there was a missing

         22  child.  We could not track that information.  That

         23  information, as per our earlier conversation alluded

         24  to, would have to be subpoenaed from the vendors.

         25  We certainly won't have that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  No. Not so

          3  much going into so much of the detail of my

          4  colleague Dan Garodnick, but in terms of if there is

          5  an emergency.  There is a cab missing. There is a

          6  driver missing.  Your system cannot enable you to

          7  tell you the exact location of that vehicle at that

          8  point?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         10  That's right.  We will not have the access to the

         11  data.  The vendors would have access to the data.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  The vendor

         13  would be able to -- in other words, someone can tell

         14  the location of that vehicle?  If the vehicle is

         15  missing or the driver is missing?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  It

         17  could be found out. My understanding is yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Two, in

         19  reference to the credit card and so forth.  So I'm a

         20  driver.  Let's say I have five rides with credit

         21  cards.  When do I see that actual money?  And does

         22  the fleet owner charge me a fee for that ride?  Is

         23  there a double dipping there?  Paying for the rental

         24  of the medallion and also now having to pay to get

         25  my money for the service that I provided?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          3  The maximum fee is set. You can't pay more than the

          4  maximum fee that is determined by the contracts we

          5  have with the vendors.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  What do you

          7  mean by maximum fee?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          9  There is a fee for a credit card transaction.  Now

         10  the next part is it depends who you are.  It depends

         11  on who you are in how you get your money. If you are

         12  a fleet driver and you're just working through the

         13  fleet, and the fleet is providing the service to

         14  you, you will have the ability to, at the end of

         15  your shift, cash out.  And that's going to be

         16  required the fleet gives you your cash. They are

         17  able to charge -- there is a fee, a transaction, an

         18  administrative fee that is a little higher than if

         19  you personally were a merchant as a small business,

         20  saying to the credit card company, I am a merchant.

         21  I do credit card transactions in my job, and you're

         22  going to give the money directly to me.  And if you

         23  were a merchant in that case, typically the money

         24  turnaround is about 48 hours.  So it depends who you

         25  are.  And your rate is typically less if you are a
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          2  merchant directly. And your rate would be a little

          3  bit higher if you're cashing out at the end.  Those

          4  are set. There's maximums that are set.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So, I just

          6  want to understand this.  If I'm an independent

          7  driver and I'm renting a vehicle, a shift.  I'm

          8  trying to understand what you're saying.  If I'm an

          9  independent driver.  I rented my car 9:00 to 5:00.

         10  At the end of my shift I have seven or eight rides

         11  that were credit card transactions.  That owner of

         12  that medallion is going to charge me a fee to pay me

         13  cash those transactions.  Correct?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         15  Basically, fair enough, yes.  There would be a fee

         16  associated with those credit card transactions.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  In addition

         18  to whatever I paid for renting the car?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         20  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  In terms of

         22  the actual equipment, the maintenance and the

         23  installation of the equipment, do you know if the

         24  drivers are going to pay a percentage of that?  That

         25  same driver, one single guy, independent guy, drives
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          2  one shift.  Who is paying for the entire equipment?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          4  Not the driver in that case.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So owners

          6  of the medallions are not allowed to pass on the

          7  cost of the equipment to the drivers?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  In

          9  the situation that you described the driver is

         10  taking out the vehicle on a daily lease and the

         11  daily lease rate is set, and they can't be charged

         12  any more than the daily lease rate.  They can be

         13  charged for credit card transactions but that rate

         14  is set at a maximum level.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  That's what

         16  I want to be clear on.  So the rates for the rental

         17  for the shift are not going to go up.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         19  They haven't gone up since 2004.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Are they

         21  going to go up now that we have this equipment?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         23  The Commission was very clear when they passed the

         24  previous fare increase in 2004 that included lease

         25  cap changes, that included this customer service
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          2  improvement, that that was all included in that.  So

          3  there is no intention at this time to change the

          4  lease caps because this project is getting

          5  implemented.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you,

          7  Commissioner.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          9  Member Martinez.

         10                 Earlier, Council Member Garodnick

         11  brought up a good point about privacy of the

         12  passengers, in fact, when they are using their

         13  credit cards.  But I suppose that it's the same risk

         14  of losing your privacy wherever you use credit

         15  cards?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  I

         17  would imagine so if people can subpoena credit card

         18  records.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So even though the

         20  TLC is not going to actually be holding all that

         21  trip information.  That information will be

         22  available somehow?  One way or another?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         24  Again, I'm not familiar enough with the legal

         25  subpoena process.  If you can subpoena credit card
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          2  records and your credit card statement says that you

          3  used your credit card at some place, then yes.  Then

          4  that information is known.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And even though the

          6  TLC at the current time does not intend to keep that

          7  level of detail of information with regard to trips

          8  and even passenger preferences, the companies that

          9  are providing this equipment, is there any

         10  restriction on their part that they cannot keep this

         11  kind of information?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         13  They are allowed to use the information they collect

         14  to make their systems better. They are not allowed

         15  to use their information to sell or to do anything

         16  other than that.

         17                 So, for example, what we anticipate

         18  happening is just them doing some type of analysis.

         19  I always say if you cross the Connecticut border, or

         20  if you go into the zone of JFK, maybe there is an ad

         21  that they want to promote.  So them understanding

         22  that people who go to JFK are people that are going

         23  to be flying airplanes and maybe they want to

         24  promote something as a part of their ads.  So

         25  intelligent ads and pushing out intelligent ads, I
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          2  see them using the data that way.  But they are not

          3  allowed to use the data in any other way.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  You

          5  mentioned that the vendors will be able to collect

          6  ad revenues?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          8  That is correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  They are going to

         10  charge companies to advertise on these systems?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  I

         12  imagine that's what they're going to do, yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So if the TLC

         14  decides to mandate this on all cabs, are the

         15  medallion owners going to have a choice of

         16  companies?  Or is the idea that one of these

         17  companies will win out?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  A

         19  couple of questions I think you asked.  One is, the

         20  vendors were asked to provide a cost.  If you see

         21  the large range that I offered in testimony, the

         22  cost range is the lower costs are if the owner

         23  decides that they would be okay with media being

         24  presented to the passenger, they get a discount.

         25  And then the higher cost is if they choose that they

                                                            97

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  don't want media offered to the passengers.

          3                 So there is two different prices that

          4  the companies have offered us.  One with media and

          5  one without. One company just has the same price for

          6  both.  So the owner has the ability to say, okay,

          7  you're going to be offering media.  I'd like some of

          8  that money, so discount the offer to me.  So that's

          9  already built into the contract.

         10                 The second piece of your question is,

         11  will there be one of the four vendors that the TLC

         12  authorizes to sell. And, again, we feel very

         13  strongly at the TLC when the decision was made that

         14  since there is so many different ways that a vehicle

         15  gets put on the road, and so many different needs of

         16  the drivers and the owners, depending on who they

         17  are, that for us to mandate one way of doing this

         18  and one company wasn't appropriate.  Instead what we

         19  chose to focus on was what the passenger is going to

         20  experience and what the TLC is basically going to

         21  get at the end of the product and how the drivers

         22  will experience it.

         23                 But within the details there are

         24  quite substantial differences.  And we believe that

         25  each of the four companies has different strengths
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          2  to different parts of the industry and we're very

          3  excited about that.  So the vendors will have to

          4  offer their services to the owners, and the owners

          5  will determine which company works best for them.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All right.  But the

          7  TLC is still going to give the stamp of approval to

          8  a particular company.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         10  No.  All four hopefully.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  So that's

         12  the intent.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         14  The intent is to still have another level of

         15  competition where the taxi industry makes the final

         16  decision on what's best for them out of the four

         17  approved vendors.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Individually?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         20  Each medallion is going to have to decide.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Finally,

         22  many of these enhancements that we're talking about

         23  are, I think they're pretty exciting for the taxi

         24  riders in New York City.  But a lot of the

         25  enhancements don't actually require that GPS to be
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          2  working all the time?  In fact, there's probably

          3  only one thing that actually requires it, which is

          4  that real-time map that shows the position of the

          5  taxi.  I don't know if people really necessarily

          6  need to know exactly where they are at a given

          7  point.  There are lots of street signs in New York

          8  City. Is the GPS, is that component actually

          9  required for these enhancements?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         11  Well --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Because if there

         13  are concerns about GPS and the constant tracking, if

         14  that's not actually needed to provide these

         15  enhancements for the riding public, then why do it?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         17  I'm going to try to answer this and not sound

         18  academic.  Technically, what we asked for is the

         19  vehicle has to display in the back where the vehicle

         20  is and where it's gone.  And we have to capture as

         21  part of the trip sheet, where the trip starts and

         22  where the trip ends.  We didn't specify a

         23  technology, but you are correct that GPS is the

         24  solution that the vendors have offered in this case.

         25  There are other solutions that are out there, but
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          2  this happens to particular one that they offered.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So GPS was an idea

          4  from the industry?  It was not an idea that came out

          5  of the TLC?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          7  The vendors offered as an answer to the vehicle

          8  location solution using GPS.  I would say that it's

          9  the general industry standard for vehicles.  I think

         10  Onstar and other products, they use GPS.  I'm not

         11  exactly familiar, but I believe they do.  My

         12  cellphone in my pocket right now also has GPS

         13  capabilities.  It's a standard format of technology

         14  that is readily being used, so I wasn't surprised to

         15  see that the vendors chose to use GPS.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I guess I should

         17  clarify my question.  It's not about GPS.  That

         18  product called GPS.  The idea of tracking the

         19  location of the vehicles, that's something that the

         20  TLC is insisting upon, not the vendors.

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         22  We're insisting that there is a map that shows you

         23  where you are and where you've been.  That is true.

         24  An electronic map.  We're also insisting there is an

         25  electronic trip sheet that shows where the trip
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          2  starts and where the trip ends.  Those are the

          3  things that we are requiring.

          4                 The notion of tracking is kind of

          5  taking the next step, I think and saying, okay, now

          6  we're tracking you. We're really keeping records of

          7  the trip sheets that we currently are required, but

          8  we're doing it in a more effective and efficient way

          9  for everybody.  And the passenger has the ability to

         10  see where they are on the screen, but that basically

         11  disappears every trip.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  And then a

         13  final set of questions from Council Member Lappin,

         14  and then we'll thank you for your time this morning.

         15  Immediately after the TLC officials testify, we'll

         16  hear from Ed Ott from the Central Labor Council.

         17  And following him, we'll hear from vendor

         18  representatives, Jessie Davis and Ed Sloam.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  Thank you,

         20  Mr. Chairman.  I apologize for being late.  I was in

         21  a meeting with the Speaker, and she put a

         22  Sergeant-At-Arms at the door and forbid anybody from

         23  leaving.  But I did read your testimony, and forgive

         24  me if this has been covered before. But I just had a

         25  question relating to in your testimony you discuss
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          2  fees for a three-year period for the equipment and

          3  network fees, and those would be going to the

          4  medallion owner, which is $2,900 to $7,200.  And

          5  then an average of 3.75% transaction fee for the

          6  drivers, is that correct?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          8  Basically, yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  Okay.  So the

         10  one thing that I don't understand is you're also

         11  talking about allowing the vendor to make more money

         12  through advertising.  So presumably the riders won't

         13  like the advertising.  The drivers and the medallion

         14  owners aren't going to benefit from the advertising.

         15  And the vendor's already getting a fee for providing

         16  the service, then why would we allow the

         17  advertising?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         19  Okay.  I think to explain it, let's just take the

         20  $2,900 and the $7,200.  Those particular prices, if

         21  you think there's four vendors, so there's

         22  technically eight prices offered within that range.

         23  But the $2,900 and the $7,200 are actually offered

         24  by the same vendor in this particular case.  One is

         25  the price with advertising and one is the price
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          2  without advertising.

          3                 So the medallion owner actually has

          4  the choice with that particular vendor of saying,

          5  the vendor says, would you like to have ads offered?

          6  It will cost $2,900.  Or if you don't like ads,

          7  that's fine, we're going to charge you $7,200. So

          8  there actually is a direct benefit to the medallion

          9  owners in the installation.  One of the things that

         10  the industry I think testified to the Commission,

         11  and when the decision was made to allow media, was

         12  that the media would help offset the cost. That's a

         13  very direct example where you see that, and I think

         14  the savings there is over $4,000 for a three-year

         15  period of time, which is quite significant, I

         16  think..  And you see that mimicked with some of the

         17  other vendors.

         18                 The fee that is being done is really

         19  a basic transaction fee allowed for credit card use

         20  that is standard amongst anyone that uses credit

         21  cards, whether it's in a taxicab or at a supermarket

         22  or at a restaurant.  So those are fees that kind of

         23  are standards in the credit card land, and as we

         24  begin to engage in using credit cards, those are

         25  fees that we just have to live with.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  I understand

          3  what you're saying although the installation of the

          4  equipment would presumably be a one-time fee.  Once

          5  the equipment is in the cab, you wouldn't have to

          6  continue to pay for that, but yet it's continually

          7  built into the fee they will be paying the vendor?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          9  Again, if you add up the costs, the vendors' maximum

         10  cost they can charge, let's $2,900 in this case,

         11  over a three-year period it's $2,900.  They can

         12  offer it in different ways.  They can offer it as a

         13  monthly payment.  They can offer it as an up front

         14  with no other costs throughout the 36 months and the

         15  lifetime of the contract.  It could be 40% or some

         16  percentage up front followed by payments afterwards.

         17  So I'm not exactly sure what you're asking, but

         18  that's the maximum that the owner would pay over the

         19  lifetime.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  Right.  I

         21  guess my last question would be, so then the

         22  assumption is the vendor's only making $4,000 to

         23  $5,000 over three years on advertising?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         25  Well, that's one way to look at it if they were
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          2  bidding and trying to bid and hope they are in zero.

          3  I think, again, one of the challenges we had with

          4  this project was, and I think you're getting at,

          5  what is the advertising revenue here, one of the

          6  challenges we had with this project was to take

          7  something that's never been before and present it in

          8  a way that's never been presented before and offer

          9  it as a good business solution and then see how it's

         10  going to be matched together.

         11                 I think what a lot of vendors did is

         12  they made assumptions and their best guesses on how

         13  much they think they could profit from having media

         14  and their ability to offer media that passengers

         15  would like to see.  And they made their best offer

         16  to us in terms of that lower price.  Is it to say

         17  that their gamble will pay off, and they will make

         18  all their money back?  I don't know.  Is it to say

         19  that their gamble will pay off and then they'll make

         20  even more money?  That's possible.  It's also not to

         21  say that if they become more competitive, again,

         22  these are maximum prices, the contractor can't

         23  charge more than this, but they can charge less.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  Right.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  So
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          2  it's not to say if they all of a sudden sign some

          3  great deal with someone that says, we'll do this and

          4  this is just a great business for us, and we'll pay

          5  for everything, then the prices could go down or

          6  even reverse in the other direction.  So we just

          7  wanted to set baselines and that's what the

          8  testimony talked about is setting technological

          9  baselines and setting service level baselines while

         10  protecting the price at a maximum level.  So there's

         11  minimums built in for passenger service and maximums

         12  built in to ensure that the owners aren't being

         13  overcharged.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  Okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         16  Member Lappin.  We've been joined by Council Member

         17  Gale Brewer, the Head of our Technology and

         18  Government Committee.

         19                 At this point, let me thank you,

         20  Commissioner Salkin and Mr. Frazier for -- please,

         21  Council Member Brewer.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I'm sorry, I

         23  wasn't here.  This is my question, Andy, is that,

         24  what is the wireless technology that you're using?

         25  Is it the most expensive?  Is it the least
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          2  expensive?  What is it that is operating the system?

          3  I don't like the system, I'm telling you that right

          4  up front.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

          6  Okay.  The system, I believe, is mostly using the

          7  wireless networks.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  But how much

          9  is it costing per month?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         11  For the drivers?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Yeah.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         14  Nothing.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  In other

         16  words, to do the GPS and to have the system in the

         17  car, it doesn't cost anybody anything?  It's no cost

         18  at all?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         20  No, to install the system, plus the recurring

         21  monthly fees.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  It

         24  has a cost, and that cost is a maximum of $2,900 to

         25  $7,200, and that is the responsibility of the owner.

                                                            108

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:  So

          4  if a driver is just driving, they lease the vehicle

          5  for the day, and they're driving around, there is no

          6  fee for them for using the cellular system that's

          7  pumping in updated data, the latest weather reports,

          8  sports scores.  There is a fee if they do process a

          9  credit card transaction.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  So

         11  you're not using any wireless system at all?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         13  No, no, no.  A wireless system is being used.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         16  But it's not being charged.  It's part of the

         17  overall cost that we've --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  What kind of

         19  wireless system is it?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         21  Again, they can use whatever system they prefer.  I

         22  believe some are using Cingular.  Some are using

         23  Nextel.  We didn't prescribe it. It's up for the

         24  vendor to find the one that works best.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  But I
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          2  understand it's a little bit more complicated than

          3  that.  But we could discuss that later.  I'm just

          4  saying I know I'm late.  I was at a hearing on a

          5  press conference on another topic, but I think the

          6  concept is good of having GPS for the driver, but as

          7  somebody who takes cabs perhaps more than any other

          8  Council member, I don't have a car, I would suggest

          9  that the television in the back for my constituents

         10  on the West Side of Manhattan, they will be

         11  extremely upset.  I don't think it makes any sense

         12  at all.  We did that before.  I'm very familiar with

         13  the two kinds of pilots that we did before. None of

         14  that makes sense here.  I'm just saying it is going

         15  to make 170,000 constituents on the West Side, I

         16  can't speak for anybody else, upset.  We won't have

         17  any further conversation now, but I will write you a

         18  strong letter, no, no, no.  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Deputy

         20  Commissioner and Mr. Frazier, thank you very much

         21  for joining us.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SALKIN:

         23  Thank you for your time.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Congratulations on

         25  the fact that Mr. Frazier did not have to chime in
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          2  today.

          3                 Let me invite Ed Ott to testify.

          4  Following Mr. Ott, we'll hear from Jesse Davis and

          5  Ed Sloam.  And following them, we'll hear from

          6  officials of the -- well, never mind. We'll hear

          7  from them right now.  If Ms. Desai is there now, may

          8  as well.  Okay.  So please proceed.

          9                 MR. OTT:  Okay, first off, Chairman

         10  Liu, I'd like to thank you for holding these

         11  hearings.  My name is Ed Ott.  I am the Executive

         12  Director of the New York City Central Labor Council,

         13  and I am here today in support of the Taxi Workers

         14  Alliance and the drivers.  I'm joined by Bhairavi

         15  Desai, one of their leaders, and I'm going to ask

         16  her to introduce herself, and then I'll follow her.

         17                 MS. DESAI:  Good morning.  I'm

         18  Bhairavi Dasai, the Executive Director of the Taxi

         19  Workers Alliance.  We are a union of over 7,000 taxi

         20  drivers in New York City.  We represent the drivers

         21  in this industry.  We're here to really set the

         22  record straight.

         23                 First and foremost, there are many

         24  things that you have just heard which are flat out

         25  lies.  It is just not true that the owners are going
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          2  to be the ones to pay for the system.  Drivers are

          3  going to be the ones that have to put the money out

          4  for this unnecessary system.  The cost of the

          5  maintenance as well as the purchase costs is going

          6  to be paid by the drivers.  We have to understand

          7  that in this industry 40% of the yellow cabs are

          8  entered into agreements to purchase by the driver.

          9  Driver- owned vehicle operators are the fastest

         10  growing segment of this industry.  They do not own

         11  the medallion, but they make payments to purchase

         12  the vehicle including all the equipment associated

         13  with that vehicle.  In fact, we can show you copies

         14  of those private agreements referred to earlier

         15  between drivers and the brokers which clearly state

         16  that it is drivers who will have to pay for this.

         17                 Secondly, not if, but when the system

         18  breaks down in the middle of the shift, no owner is

         19  going to lose a penny over it.  But drivers are

         20  going to lose significant money when the system

         21  breaks down in the middle of their shifts.

         22                 Not only are passengers going to be

         23  affected in terms of service, but again, the 43,000

         24  licensed taxi workers in this industry are going to

         25  be affected with the loss of income.
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          2                 Drivers will also lose income through

          3  the credit card transactions.  As of now, on the

          4  credit card fares, because some taxis do have credit

          5  cards right now, the brokers are charging 5% on

          6  those fares.  Even, for example, if the passenger

          7  paid for the fare that included a toll for that fare

          8  for that ride, the driver still loses 5% off of that

          9  money.  If the credit card does not go through, as

         10  was stated earlier, it's the drivers that take that

         11  loss.

         12                 In terms of security, I've not heard

         13  anything in this room, have not read anything in the

         14  papers, that speaks to how riders can be assured

         15  that their fares will be secured.  They will not be.

         16    Credit card fraud is a major issue for consumers

         17  to deal with, and within the capacity of a taxi cab

         18  where their cards will be swiped, no one has to

         19  check on the identity.  I will guarantee you that

         20  there will be major fraud.

         21                 One of our main concerns with this

         22  fraud is the effect that it will have on the taxi

         23  cab drivers.  We can show you incidents where a

         24  consumer complained that there was a fraud, and the

         25  TLC held a hearing.  Because the TLC scheduled the
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          2  hearing, the consumer in this particular incident

          3  had gone to the NYPD and made a criminal complaint.

          4                 You know, drivers are going to be

          5  affected not only financially.  The hard earned

          6  income that they earn after 60 to 70 hours of work

          7  on the streets of New York City is going to be in

          8  major danger of reducing.  Drivers already do not

          9  earn the living wage of the TLC claims that they

         10  earn.

         11                 Secondly, in terms of privacy, of

         12  course riders' information is going to be tracked.

         13  That's the nature of the technology.  Maybe today

         14  the TLC will say, we don't need X, Y and Z data.

         15  Who is to say that tomorrow they won't ask for that

         16  same particular data?  For years in this industry we

         17  have seen things happen outside of public hearings,

         18  but rather inside the rooms of policy makers where

         19  no one in the industry is informed of the data that

         20  gets collected and rules and policies that are

         21  implemented.

         22                 I find it very interesting in terms

         23  of the process of this that if a vendor fails

         24  something, they get to just fix it and they get to

         25  put their cars still on the road. If a taxi cab
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          2  driver fills out an application and leaves out one

          3  question on that application, they are denied.

          4  They're not able to correct that mistake and then

          5  pass it at a second time.

          6                 The t.v. taxis which failed

          7  miserably, they did not go beyond the pilot program.

          8    They gave it a one year pilot program.  But here

          9  is a system that is so much more complicated, has

         10  much more to it, is much more controversial and has

         11  been debated and has gained opposition throughout

         12  this industry, and yet there's a pilot program of

         13  like two months and then it's going to be out on the

         14  streets?  This is ridiculous.  What is at stake here

         15  is that the vendors who are going to get these

         16  contracts, the TLC itself has said there's up to $90

         17  million collectively for the 13,087 taxis in terms

         18  of the purchase and the monthly maintenance costs.

         19                 And then in terms of the revenue for

         20  the advertising, why has that not been publicly

         21  discussed?  If this system goes through, then every

         22  single penny of advertising revenue should be put

         23  aside for form a health and wellness fund for the

         24  taxi drivers of New York City.

         25                 On the credit card fares, in terms of
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          2  fraud, as well as for the interest that drivers lose

          3  on it, the TLC should have a system as a means to

          4  compensate the drivers for the loss of income.  We

          5  didn't ask for this system.  Riders did not ask for

          6  the system.  This is being brought in without any

          7  sort of real demand, and the process itself has been

          8  highly flawed.  There is already a Department of

          9  Investigations inquiry into this whole process.

         10                 There has not been real discussion

         11  with the drivers.  As Council Member Liu, yourself

         12  pointed out, the tracking is not necessary.  And

         13  from Day One this is the main thing that we have

         14  been opposed to, and yet we still see it on the

         15  papers.  It's not necessary, but nobody is listening

         16  to us.  And nobody's listening because there's $90

         17  million at stake here.

         18                 The other aspects of this technology

         19  in terms of the screens, nobody has asked for it.

         20  And in terms of the provisions that they have put in

         21  to make sure that this pilot does not fail, that

         22  provision, ladies and gentlemen, is called an off

         23  switch.  So why are we going to have to pay a high

         24  cost for something for the majority of the time is

         25  going to be turned off.  That's already inconvenient
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          2  in terms of the view of it.  This is absolutely

          3  ridiculous.

          4                 What we need in this industry is a

          5  liveable income.  We need healthcare.  We need

          6  retirement pension.  We need short term disability.

          7  We need paid time off.  We don't need technology

          8  that is going to be useless and remain unused. This

          9  is an absolute scam, and we need the City Council to

         10  step in and intervene.  The TLC is not listening to

         11  us.  They have made their decisions already.  We

         12  need our elected officials to step in and do the

         13  right thing, to correct all of the wrongs that have

         14  been made throughout this process.

         15                 MR. OTT:  Council Member Mealy, when

         16  she was here, really got at the key question for the

         17  Central Labor Council's interest in this in that

         18  what's the status of these workers?  If this was a

         19  unionized setting, this would be considered a

         20  substantial change in working conditions, and the

         21  whole thing would be bargainable.  The industry

         22  would have to sit down with the union and the

         23  workers, and they would have to discuss this whole

         24  thing before it's imposed.  It's precisely the lack

         25  of legal status of these workers as employees that
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          2  has us at the table here today.  Because the

          3  implications of what could be done here for other

          4  workers is dramatic.  Anybody who drives a vehicle,

          5  anybody who drives a bus with the City of New York,

          6  the same kind of system could be used to what we are

          7  concerned about over supervision.

          8                 So there are labor relations

          9  implications for what's being done here that we are

         10  very, very concerned about.

         11                 Even the use of credit cards and how

         12  that fee is arrived at would be a bargainable issue

         13  if they had the status of employees and the right to

         14  collectively bargain.  So this whole thing, from

         15  where we sit, is being done in the weak link in the

         16  workers' interests.  In that because of their status

         17  as contract workers, as opposed to legal employees,

         18  things will be done here that will set precedent for

         19  all kinds of workers in the City, both public and

         20  private.

         21                 We think this should be really

         22  carefully considered by our elected officials, and

         23  for that reason I really do appreciate this hearing

         24  because this is a very good airing of all the

         25  issues.  I actually get the vendor's interest.  It's
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          2  a clean, we want to make money.  No problem, we

          3  understand it.  But the implications of that for the

          4  owners of the medallions, for the people who

          5  actually do the work, they are dramatic, and we need

          6  to have a full discussion.

          7                 I really thought that some of the

          8  answers of the Commissioner were half baked answers.

          9    The implications of somebody jumping into a cab at

         10  the Port Authority Bus Terminal with the idea in

         11  their head that they're going to use a credit card

         12  and then have that credit card system not work when

         13  they get out to the airport today, $37.50, please.

         14  I have no cash, and the driver will carry that

         15  burden?  That's ridiculous. It's outrageous.

         16                 Lastly, let me just say this.  All

         17  rates of compensation should be bargainable.  The

         18  money that's coming in here in an industry where we

         19  have people who work much harder than many of us in

         20  terms of the hours they put in, 70 hours a week.  No

         21  healthcare.  And we're going to bring in millions of

         22  dollars into this industry?  And there's no

         23  discussion of how that revenue is going to be

         24  utilized to improve the conditions of the people who

         25  do the work?  That's wrong.  That's morally
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          2  bankrupt.  We are opposed to it.

          3                 Lastly, let me just say this, and a

          4  lot has been said here in terms of the technical

          5  costs, the technical implications of this thing.

          6  This is a system that has been tried and it has

          7  intermittently worked at best.  I don't want to

          8  declare it a failure.  Technology's got to get

          9  worked out. But in this town with the density,

         10  particularly in Manhattan, I don't see it working to

         11  begin with.  And we may be throwing resources down a

         12  rat hole here, and I think that that needs to be

         13  considered.

         14                 Finally, from a passenger point of

         15  view, what's the enhancement of imposing yet another

         16  screen in my face? Why is that considered an

         17  enhancement?  That's an imposition and a burden in a

         18   -- I can't even get on a supermarket line anymore

         19  without having to watch that crap and now I'm held

         20  captive from anywhere from 10 to 50 minutes in a cab

         21  where I'm either going to get scrolled information

         22  right in front of my face or be forced to watch a

         23  screen.  If we have the option to turn it off, I'm

         24  telling you right now I'm turning it off as soon as

         25  I walk in the cab.  I'm turning it off.
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          2                 But lastly, the Taxi Workers Alliance

          3  makes a really good point here.  You're going to

          4  bring in all of this money, all of these changing

          5  the conditions of the driver. And there's no real

          6  discussion of the driver's benefit here. We're

          7  opposed to that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  I think

          9  it's pretty clear that you're opposed to this

         10  system.

         11                 MR. OTT:  I'm opposed to the way it's

         12  being done.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I think the

         14  Committee appreciates the passion with which you

         15  make your arguments. There obviously are many labor

         16  related and worker related issues with regard to how

         17  the taxi industry is run in our City.  Those should

         18  be discussed.  Even in the sale of the medallions,

         19  the amount of monies that were involved were far

         20  greater than the overall magnitude of the dollars

         21  involved in this particular venture.

         22                 I think in fairness we have to look

         23  at the potential benefits for the taxi riders.  It's

         24  not necessarily -- I would not necessarily agree

         25  that we shouldn't discuss these kinds of possible
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          2  enhancements without first discussing the worker

          3  issues.  So that being said, I think that we will

          4  undertake a review of the worker issues involved and

          5  hold hearings in the near future on that issue.

          6  Even among the organizations representing taxi

          7  drivers, there is not necessarily a uniform set of

          8  opinions there.  So those are issues that we

          9  definitely have to flesh out.

         10                 On the other hand, the enhancements

         11  or the potential benefits to the passengers, I think

         12  those were fleshed out back in 2004.  This is part

         13  of that plan now that was initiated two and a half

         14  years ago.  I wouldn't necessarily say that we

         15  should not even pursue these kinds of enhancements

         16  for taxi riders before we resolve kind of like the

         17  broader worker, industry, contractor versus employee

         18  issues.

         19                 MR. OTT:  I want to make this clear.

         20  Because I said it in my testimony.  I don't have an

         21  issue with the vendors.  I understand what they're

         22  trying to do.  They're trying to bring in something

         23  that they believe will work. We're interpreting it

         24  as part of an industry as an enhancement.  One of

         25  the points that the Commissioner made was that
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          2  people would even have the option of reading the

          3  news. They're behind the curve.  I read my newspaper

          4  on this every day.  I got the Daily News.  I got the

          5  New York Times.  I got them all.  I got CNN.  In a

          6  couple of weeks I'll watch t.v. on this thing.

          7                 We really ought to think about what

          8  we're going after here and make sure that it works.

          9  What's an enhancement for me?  I was very thankful

         10  we got to the point where I could get a cab where I

         11  didn't have to break my ankles getting in and out.

         12  It was a big improvement.  As far as I'm concerned,

         13  the ride's gone down since they stopped making

         14  checkers. Let's get at the real things about

         15  comfort, safety, efficiency.  We can do that.  How

         16  do cabs move through this City quicker?  What can we

         17  do with congestion?  Those are issues that we really

         18  need to discuss.  Healthcare for the drivers.  I'd

         19  love to come back to a public hearing, and let's

         20  have a real discussion, a positive discussion on how

         21  we can get to that.  They call them contractors, but

         22  the scientific testers look like, smells like,

         23  tastes like work, they're workers, sorry.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  I think it

         25  seems to be clear though that the Taxi and Limousine

                                                            123

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  Committee is well on their way towards implementing

          3  this kind of system in the taxi cabs.  So I don't

          4  think that these kinds of important issues, and they

          5  are important issues, are going to stop the

          6  technology from being implemented in the cabs.  I

          7  think to the extent that we can have a productive

          8  discussion on how the systems can be made better.

          9  For example, we've had many meetings, Bhairavi and

         10  her people and our Committee staff, talking about

         11  how whether the GPS is actually needed for many of

         12  the enhancements that the TLC would like to provide

         13  for taxi riders.

         14                 I think, Mr. Ott, you bring up an

         15  excellent point about who should bear the risk in

         16  case of a credit card machine break down or

         17  malfunction.  I mean, that doesn't seem to make

         18  sense that if someone is taking a ride from the

         19  airport, and we're talking about $50 rides,

         20  including the tip, that the driver should be

         21  responsible if the credit card machine breaks down.

         22                 So I think those are details that we

         23  can have a very productive discussion on to make

         24  sure that the drivers who are involved are as

         25  protected as possible while providing benefits to
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          2  the riding public.  Not everybody is going to like

          3  the screen, which is exactly why the TLC insisted

          4  that there be a turn off functionality.  But I would

          5  imagine that in this day and age there are going to

          6  be some people who would like to have those screens

          7  in the taxis  It's going to be a matter of rider and

          8  consumer choice.

          9                 So I would say, I know you have a lot

         10  of things to say, and you're free to say them.

         11  Let's figure out what we can do together to make

         12  sure that the system truly is working for the

         13  benefit of the passengers and the drivers involved

         14  and not creating or imposing any burdens that are

         15  just really not necessary.

         16                 MS. DESAI:  Council Member, there are

         17  only 38 cabs out on the streets right now.  The

         18  vendor that's already out hasn't even reached its 50

         19  capacity.  There are three other vendors that still

         20  haven't tested their cars.  Yes, this issue has been

         21  in discussion for over two years now, but there is

         22  still more than ample time to say we need to stop

         23  the process at this point and put in safety guards.

         24  So the drivers don't get slammed through this

         25  technology.  They're going to lose major money just
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          2  on the purchase, on the credit card issue, on any

          3  losses.

          4                 Besides the cost, there are real

          5  concerns in terms of adjudications and enforcement

          6  and regulation of drivers.  These are serious issues

          7  for working adults who primarily rely on the income

          8  from this industry to feed their families.  You

          9  know, we're talking about 43,000 licensed taxi

         10  drivers in New York City who are going to be

         11  affected by this. These are serious concerns that we

         12  have, and there is more than ample time at this

         13  moment to say, we need to monitor this test.  It

         14  needs to be a public evaluation through the City

         15  Council, not the TLC, but the City Council itself.

         16  I mean, the Council has already legislated a

         17  priority for hybrids as well as wheelchair

         18  accessible taxis.  And now those two things already

         19  have a cost to them.  Now there's a third issue

         20  that's being put on top of the industry that will

         21  also have a cost. Well, where does healthcare come

         22  into the picture?

         23                 Even in terms of all these "upgrades"

         24  to the taxi, we don't need a high tech mobile

         25  sweatshop.  What we need are the conditions in this
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          2  industry to be improved.  We need to set the

          3  priorities as to how the technology gets used and

          4  what technology gets implemented and how the vehicle

          5  itself gets changed.  Everything that is on the

          6  table right now, it is overly burdensome.

          7                 It is not only a violation in terms

          8  of privacy, and we're talking about tracking

          9  technology.  There is a difference between a locator

         10  and tracking technology.  Every taxi cab already has

         11  low jack.  That's a locator.  We're talking about

         12  GPS.  That is the essence of that technology. You

         13  know, you can have a really nice pit bull that maybe

         14  doesn't bite every person that passes him, but that

         15  pit bull has the capacity to bite everybody that

         16  passes him.  This is a technology that has the

         17  capacity to track, and it's already been shown in

         18  terms of the riders.  There have been divorce

         19  settlements where the GPS records from taxi rides

         20  have been subpoenaed and they have been used.  The

         21  TLC Chairman himself had said at the May, 2005 TLC

         22  public hearing that these records which inherently

         23  are flawed, by the way, because that is the nature

         24  of the technology.  When the government first

         25  popularized it in the '80's, it was publicly made
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          2  possible but it had a flawed chip within it.  So

          3  we're going to have a flawed tracking technology,

          4  but drivers are going to be held accountable to it

          5  in court.

          6                 There are major issues here.  You are

          7  talking about a workforce.  I welcome you to come

          8  out with us and go to the airport lot at La Guardia.

          9    Go to the airport lot at JFK.  Every driver that

         10  you will talk to has major objections. Every driver

         11  that I talk to, I cannot tell you the number of

         12  people who have said to me, if this thing comes in,

         13  that's it. We're fed up, you know, I'm done.  I want

         14  to get out of this industry.

         15                 And you always hear that, well, taxi

         16  drivers will say that, but I'm talking about people

         17  that have been career drivers.  Men and women who

         18  have invested years of their life in serving New

         19  Yorkers and tourists through this industry.  Why are

         20  our issues not being heard?  And our issues are

         21  major.  The reasoning from the other side, none of

         22  it is legitimate.  It's mostly flawed.  There have

         23  been many distortions in terms of what you've been

         24  told, in terms of the capacity and the capability of

         25  this technology and the need for it.  We need to
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          2  stop this before it collapses itself.

          3                 If the t.v. taxis or the talking

          4  taxis, drivers had to change those annoying

          5  recordings several times a year. We had to pay to

          6  put it in.  They had to pay to take them back out.

          7  This is way too costly.  And incomes and privacy and

          8  security are too much of fundamental issues for us

          9  to move along as if there's nothing that can be

         10  done.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  We have a

         12  question from Council Member Brewer.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  My question

         14  is the following.  I know that in the past in the

         15  experiment that I witnessed was that much of the

         16  technology, as you suggested, often doesn't work.

         17  So the notion of turning off the screen was one in

         18  which it never turned off.  That was my experience.

         19  The issue was the lights, not the driver's fault,

         20  but often the lights that exist in the cabs now

         21  often don't work.  I assume the bulb is out or

         22  something.  All of these things often break down.

         23  You don't want to stop your tour to go get them

         24  fixed if they're not life threatening, et cetera,

         25  and so you continue on.  So that is exactly what
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          2  will happen, in my opinion, for the passenger will

          3  be this advertising mechanism will be continuing and

          4  flashing in your face 12 inches.  As indicated, we

          5  all have, many of us, not everybody, have the

          6  opportunity to look at some kind of a device to be

          7  able to get the same information without the

          8  advertising.

          9                 So my question to you, is it also

         10  your experiences that the break downs exist and that

         11  they will be something that would occur, be it the

         12  credit card machine, or the live feed coming up from

         13  the back seat, or perhaps even the GPS?  What

         14  happens when these things break down?

         15                 MS. DESAI:  Well, when they break

         16  down, the driver, you know, bears the cost.  We've

         17  had incidents with members.  I was talking to one of

         18  our members last night, Mr. Mudad (phonetic) who has

         19  been driving for three years with a credit card in

         20  his taxi.  He said 25% of his credit card fares he

         21  doesn't get the money.

         22                 I was talking to a second gentleman

         23  who has also been driving a cab for three years with

         24  a credit card taxi, and again he said the same

         25  thing.  And they actually, Mr. Mudad just had an
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          2  incident recently, and he was showing me the

          3  receipt.  It was an $80 fare that the credit card

          4  didn't go through.  The person didn't have any cash.

          5    He was out of New York State.  There was nothing

          6  that he could about it. And at the moment what the

          7  drivers have to do is they get the printout from the

          8  meter, and then they bring it in and then they get

          9  reimbursed for it.  So, on one hand, their costs,

         10  their cash costs have actually gone up.  But the

         11  cash that they're taking in has gone down.  And

         12  there's also a delay in terms of when they're going

         13  to get their income.

         14                 Now, say, for example, if they lose

         15  that receipt, they don't get reimbursed.

         16                 So there are so many ways in which

         17  people have been already losing money on the credit

         18  card transactions. You'll find most of the studies

         19  have shown throughout the country that drivers

         20  universally have been against it.  And it's not

         21  people are against technology.  Many of them

         22  themselves as consumers will have a credit card.

         23  But it's a question of logic.  Is this is the

         24  logical place to be having a majority of fares that

         25  are going to be credit card based?           I want
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          2  to give you an example.  It's very possible that,

          3  let's say a typical fare is $8.  If you take 5% off

          4  of that, it's 40 cents you don't get on that credit

          5  fare. Well, if that happens to you 30 times within a

          6  month, which you can average about 750 fares within

          7  a month, so even you assume 25% of your 750 fares

          8  are $8 fares on their credit card, well, within a

          9  month you're going to be losing $60.  And within a

         10  whole year you're going to lose $720.  This is the

         11  minimum example that I'm giving you.

         12                 So, of course, people are outraged.

         13  I'd like to know that if every time something goes

         14  wrong at the TLC Queens Boulevard, what if the TLC

         15  employees had to take 5% off of their paychecks?  I

         16  seriously doubt that they would approve of it.

         17  Well, why should drivers have to suffer?  Here is

         18  the thing that they seem not to be understanding.

         19  The nature of the technology is such that you can

         20  only regulate the mechanisms to a certain extent.

         21  So we have to ask the question, are the benefits of

         22  it greater than the cost of it to the drivers?  And

         23  the answer is no.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So it's not just

         25  the GPS thing? The whole credit card bit is
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          2  something that is not desired by your group?

          3                 MS. DESAI:  Absolutely.  And not just

          4  by our group, but by thousands and thousands of

          5  drivers working in New York City.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Well, thank

          7  you very much for your time today.

          8                 MS. DESAI:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Once again, the

         10  reason why we're having this hearing is to have some

         11  constructive input into exactly what is happening in

         12  our taxi cabs.  We will also have to explore the

         13  worker related issues with regard to the industry.

         14                 Next, let me invite representatives

         15  of the industry -- I'm sorry, of the vendors, Jesse

         16  Davis and Ed Sloam.  And as part of this panel there

         17  will be a visual presentation.  Thank you,

         18  gentlemen, for being gentlemen today.

         19                 After this panel, we'll hear from

         20  Richard Thaler.  Please proceed.

         21                 MR. SLOAM:  Good morning.  I'm Ed

         22  Sloam, President of Taxi Technology Corporation,

         23  more commonly known as Taxi Tech.  We are one of the

         24  four vendors chosen by the TLC to provide technology

         25  enhancements to the City's 13,000 taxi cabs.
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          2                 First, I'd like to address the

          3  rigorous process that the TLC employed in order to

          4  choose the selected vendors. I have personally been

          5  conducting business and practicing corporate law

          6  working on mega transactions for 15 years.  I have

          7  rarely seen a vetting process as thorough and

          8  complete as this one.  Not only did the TLC

          9  relentlessly pour over all the financial and

         10  technological information that they required us to

         11  submit, they also meticulously tested our system in

         12  every way imaginable.  They have inspected our three

         13  prototype vehicles literally hundreds of times,

         14  including requiring us to participate in extensive

         15  passenger surveys including from the Upper West

         16  Side, by the way, for which our system received

         17  tremendously positive feedback.  I can get into that

         18  later.

         19                 That brings me to my main point

         20  today.  The City's market research which was

         21  independently conducted, as well as our own market

         22  research, indicate that passengers love our new

         23  technology.  I cannot emphasize that enough.  They

         24  want good customer service.  They want the ability

         25  to pay by credit card without handing the card over
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          2  to the driver in order to protect their card number,

          3  and they want an attractive, cool screen giving them

          4  content and information that they can use.

          5                 After they use our system, we get

          6  comments like, "Wow, what an amazing experience."

          7   "This is transformational.  I will take more taxis

          8  now."  "So taxis in the City are finally moving to

          9  the 21st century."  This isn't in my testimony, but

         10  I'll say that I am repeatedly personally surprised

         11  by the level of enthusiasm that we get from

         12  passengers that sit in our car.

         13                 Next, I would like to say a few words

         14  about my company, Taxi Tech, so you know who you're

         15  dealing with. Well, why were we chosen?  Well, for

         16  our experience and for the quality of our team.  Our

         17  partners in this endeavor provide similar or related

         18  technology to tens of thousands of customers,

         19  actually closer to 100,000 customers all over the

         20  world, and our partners lead in their fields.

         21                 Just a few examples.  Ingenico is a

         22  company that provides the main hardware in our

         23  solution.  Ingenico is the world's largest provider

         24  of payment systems with nearly 30 years of corporate

         25  history, over $500 million in revenue and more than
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          2  8.5 million payment terminals deployed worldwide.

          3  That includes more than 20,000 taxi cabs using an

          4  earlier version of our system in Australia for close

          5  to 10 years.

          6                 Navman provides our driver terminal

          7  which has been deployed in over 45,000 vehicles in

          8  the United States alone.

          9                 Apriva provides our data

         10  communication payment engine and payment gateway, as

         11  it does currently for 48,000 wireless merchants that

         12  accept credit cards wirelessly, and they provide

         13  this service to customers such as Chase, First Data

         14  Corporation and the U.S. Department of Defense.

         15                 Grey Island provides our electronic

         16  trip sheet and text messaging which has been

         17  discussed extensively today. Grey Island currently

         18  services vehicles and municipal fleets all over the

         19  North America including several departments of the

         20  City of New York currently as well as the Downtown

         21  Alliance.

         22                 Finally, I'd like to, in brief, yes,

         23  there are issues with technology, but this isn't

         24  something new that we invented yesterday.  It's been

         25  done lots of times.  This is a different version of
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          2  what's already been done.

          3                 Finally, I'd like to address the

          4  benefits this project brings to taxi passengers and

          5  to the taxi industry. Importantly, studies have

          6  shown that when businesses start accepting credit

          7  and debit cards, they increase their income by 10 to

          8  30 percent.  That much more than offsets any of the

          9  costs that we're talking about.  That means more

         10  money for the taxi industry and more convenience for

         11  passengers.

         12                 I'll digress from my testimony here

         13  for a minute.  The industry has been studied, and we

         14  have some ideas of how much a typical taxi

         15  generates.  The latest figures that are available

         16  publicly are that it's approximately $12,000 per

         17  month.  If you increase that by 10%, only 10%, or

         18  even 5%, you're much more than offsetting the cost

         19  of the equipment. Just take that into account,

         20  please.

         21                 So the more than 700,000 New Yorkers

         22  and visitors who take taxi cabs every day will have

         23  a more enjoyable, interactive experience.  We're

         24  sure of that.  We have no doubt about it.  Our

         25  screens will provide passengers their location on an
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          2  interactive, live map, movie trailers for their

          3  viewing pleasure.  They seem to love that.  Music of

          4  their choice, news, updated financial information,

          5  the weather forecast, a clock.  By the way, we all

          6  have watches. Passenger surveys are very clear that

          7  they want a clock, so they get a clock.  Events

          8  around the City and other consumer driven

          9  information.  Simply put, passengers will have a

         10  more enjoyable experience in these cabs than they've

         11  ever had before, and the scientific research of

         12  passengers in New York City indicates that.

         13                 This project will turn New York City

         14  taxis into the envy of the rest of the country and

         15  the world.

         16                 I'd like to thank Chairman Liu and

         17  all the members of the Committee for allowing me to

         18  speak.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

         20  Sloam.  Mr. Davis?

         21                 MR. DAVIS:  Good morning, Mr. Chair

         22  and members of the Committee.  My name is Jesse

         23  Davis, and I'm the President and Chief Operating

         24  Officer of Creative Mobile Technologies, the

         25  contractor agent for Mobile Knowledge, one of the
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          2  vendors selected by the City of New York to provide

          3  the technology based enhancements in yellow

          4  medallion taxi cabs.

          5                 I'd like to start by addressing the

          6  topic of today's hearings which asks, will taxi cab

          7  technology enhancements improve the taxi cab

          8  experience for riders?  Any answer is absolutely

          9  yes.  In the very near future when passengers enter

         10  a yellow taxi cab outfitted with CMT's Freedom

         11  Solution, they will find a passenger information

         12  monitor or PIM viewable from the back seat.  The PIM

         13  will show a welcome greeting from the City and

         14  feature all kinds of information relevant to their

         15  ride such as a passenger's Bill of Rights, the JFK

         16  flat fare information, a message to call 311 for

         17  anything from complaints to lost luggage.

         18                 Then, passengers will have the option

         19  of watching New York 10, or the New York Taxi

         20  Entertainment Network specifically created by our

         21  partner, Clear Channel. New York 10 features

         22  exclusive content provided by the NBC National

         23  Television Network.  Content, which will also

         24  feature advertising, will be compelling, varied and

         25  frequently changing to keep passengers entertained,
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          2  informed and up to date.

          3                 If passengers choose, they can mute

          4  the sound, dim the monitor or simply turn it off.

          5  Throughout the ride, passengers will see the fare in

          6  real time on the screen including all tolls and

          7  surcharges.  Passengers will be able to tailor the

          8  news ticker information that runs across the screen

          9  throughout the New York 10 program.  For example,

         10  they can check financial news or simply get the

         11  weather forecast.

         12                 We are currently working to utilize

         13  the GPS capability equipped in all our cabs to bring

         14  the latest traffic information to passengers which

         15  will enable them to get to their destination quicker

         16  and with less hassle.

         17                 When passengers are ready to pay the

         18  fare, they'll now have the option of paying by

         19  credit or debit card, which is a huge benefit to

         20  passengers.  After simple prompts on the screen

         21  including a brief card swipe animation which we

         22  created, passengers look over the fare, enter the

         23  tip.  We make easier by providing quick tip

         24  percentage keys.  And then they swipe the card right

         25  there on the PIM.  The driver never handles the
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          2  card, but the driver can facilitate most aspects of

          3  the fare payment process to help the passenger if

          4  they choose or cannot interact with the screen.  The

          5  swipe approval can take as little as 2 seconds.

          6                 Drivers will receive relevant text

          7  messages from the TLC on their driver interactive

          8  unit informing them of everything from traffic

          9  delays to fare opportunities to lost luggage

         10  requests.  This will improve service where it is

         11  most needed, help passengers more efficiently locate

         12  lost items and ease congestion on the streets of New

         13  York City.

         14                 The Freedom Solution has another key

         15  built- in benefit.  We provide free installation and

         16  offer free usage of our equipment.  We charge only a

         17  low activation fee and monthly usage fee, all

         18  inclusive, to handle any and all cellular charges,

         19  maintenance and repair costs.  We are able to do

         20  this because we have developed an advertising based

         21  model that helps offset the costs.

         22                 Additionally, drivers will benefit

         23  from the low rates that we were able to negotiate

         24  with our credit card partner, Bank of America.  Our

         25  philosophy is that a financially healthy taxi
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          2  industry creates the best taxi service for the

          3  riders.  We also believe that driver safety can be

          4  enhanced by the technology which is why we have

          5  included a GPS enabled safety alert button.

          6                 Our Freeman Solution and this entire

          7  program truly utilizes technology to improve the

          8  taxi experience for passengers and modernize the

          9  taxi industry.  Fare volume will likely go up now

         10  that all taxis will accept credit cards. Driver tips

         11  will likely increase significantly, as research

         12  shows that people who pay with plastic leave larger

         13  tips.  And technologies like internet capability,

         14  text messaging and GPS create endless opportunities

         15  to better service the passengers. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         17  much.  Mr. Sloam, you spoke about the passenger

         18  surveys, the extensive passenger surveys.  Who

         19  conducted those surveys?

         20                 MR. SLOAM:  The TLC.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And where did they

         22  get the passengers?

         23                 MR. SLOAM:  They were people who take

         24  taxis, and they got paid to come take the survey.

         25  They weren't asked if they like technology.  They
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          2  were random people who were asked if they take

          3  taxis.  If they do, would you like this sum of money

          4  to come participate in a survey?  Come downtown, sit

          5  in each of the four cars, answer like 100 questions.

          6    It was very scientifically done.  It drove us

          7  crazy.  It took tens of hours.  They did it on

          8  evenings and weekends so people who work can

          9  participate because those are the people who take

         10  taxis.  It was scientifically done.  It wasn't just

         11  take five of your buddies and sit in a taxi.  76% of

         12  the passengers said that our system is excellent.

         13  They loved it.  Only 2% said it was unsatisfactory

         14  including people on the Upper West Side. Sorry?

         15  They're not real West Siders?  I invite everyone

         16  here to come use our system, and we'll be very

         17  surprised if more than 2% won't like it objectively.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All right.  So both

         19  of you also testified about the -- well, you both

         20  contend that the use of credit cards will actually

         21  increase the revenues for the drivers.

         22                 MR. SLOAM:  Yes, actually on two

         23  levels.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That more people

         25  will take taxis and that the tip they leave behind
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          2  will be greater. I know you mentioned the source of

          3  that, but how true is that?

          4                 MR. SLOAM:  Well, Councilman Liu, I

          5  personally spent three years in the electronic

          6  payments industry, meaning re- selling credit card

          7  and debit card processing services to small

          8  businesses.  That's what I did.  That's how I got

          9  into this project.  I got into this project because

         10  my partner was working on it, and he said, well, you

         11  know a lot about credit card payments, that's part

         12  of this project, would you like to join me?  So I

         13  studied it, and I understand it, and there's one

         14  very clear tenet in the credit card processing

         15  industry. You always face a challenge when you talk

         16  to a small business owner, be it any business.  Why

         17  should this person agree to pay 2% -- two to three

         18  percent, whatever it ends up being in fees for

         19  credit cards.  He tells you, why should I pay

         20  anybody to take payments?  It's my business.  I'm

         21  selling.  What should I pay anybody?  I don't pay

         22  the bank when I deposit a check, although some of

         23  them do.

         24                 So the answer is very simple.  This

         25  is the very basic tenet of one- third of
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          2  transactions in the United States of America.  The

          3  reason people take credit cards is that they sell.

          4  I used conservative numbers.  The common number in

          5  the industry is between 20 and 50 percent more when

          6  they start taking credit cards.  So you say, well,

          7  that doesn't apply in taxis.  Okay, we'll think

          8  about whether it applies in taxis.           We have

          9  a very strong black car and limousine service in

         10  this City utilized largely by corporate employees. I

         11  was a corporate employee.  I used to have to get

         12  home at 1:00 in the morning and the employer would

         13  pay for it.  So the same I think is with other

         14  people in this room.  And I never took a taxi,

         15  almost.  And why was that?  Because I didn't want to

         16  have to lay out my own cash and keep that little

         17  receipt and remember at the end of my 120 hour work

         18  week to fill out an expense report and get repaid.

         19  But guess what?  If I could have gone downstairs and

         20  used my corporate credit card and charged it back to

         21  the client, I would have.  And so will lots of other

         22  corporate employees who use black cars in the cities

         23  right now.  Just that segment --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That was an

         25  intrepid solo over there.
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          2                 MR. SLOAM:  Are you a corporate

          3  employer, by any chance?  And that will also relieve

          4  a lot of pain for a lot of the corporate employers

          5  who don't want to have to process all these paper

          6  receipts.  Just that is going to increase fares by

          7  more than 5 percent.  I think it's going to be 10 to

          8  15 percent, just that segment, number one.

          9                 Number two, and again I'm just

         10  speaking anecdotally, but I think it informs

         11  everybody's experience in New York City.  I came to

         12  New York for -- I live in New Jersey, but I came to

         13  New York for a naming event for a baby that was

         14  born, and I arrived at the wrong location because I

         15  had got the address wrong and I was like, Oh, my god

         16  I have to be there in 5 minutes and I have no way to

         17  get there.  And guess what, I didn't have any cash

         18  on me.  I had 5 dollars. I had no way to get to my

         19  destination.  Okay, if I had a credit card I would

         20  have taken a taxi.  We all have had that experience.

         21

         22                 There has also been some discussions

         23  here about what happens if the guy says he is going

         24  to pay by credit card, it's a $37 fare, you get to

         25  the end of the ride and then it's an invalid credit
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          2  card.  You dial in and the transaction gets

          3  declined.  Well, here is the answer to that

          4  question. The same thing that happens when he

          5  doesn't have cash.  Talk to the average driver.

          6  They've all had experiences where they get to their

          7  destination and passenger says, "I'm sorry I don't

          8  have cash on me."  Everybody look in your wallet and

          9  see what do you have more of cash dollars or credit

         10  available on your credit cards?  This is another

         11  proposition of the credit card industry.  Perhaps

         12  the driver community doesn't have the same

         13  experience, but the passenger community, they all

         14  carry thousands of dollars more in credit card

         15  payment ability than they do in cash.  So a lot more

         16  people are going to take taxis just because they can

         17  pay by credit card and they don't have cash at that

         18  minute.  Some people do go to ATM machines.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Hold on.  Mr.

         20  Davis, do you want to add anything to the credit

         21  card discussion about how much it increases the use

         22  of taxis and whether it does lead to bigger tips?

         23                 MR. DAVIS:  I agree with Ed on all

         24  the research and all the industry's credit card

         25  usage has increased business and increased revenue
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          2  for the person accepting it. Around the country for

          3  taxis have started taking credit cards, like Chicago

          4  as an example, drivers have been found to be getting

          5  more fares and larger tips.  I am not the vendor

          6  that is on the street with 36 cars already, but I

          7  have spoken with drivers in those cars, and those

          8  drivers in the short week that they've been on the

          9  street have confirmed that they are getting larger

         10  tips on fares that they are getting today.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Can either or both

         12  of you address the concern that if something does

         13  break down with the credit card processing mechanism

         14   -- First of all, how often does that happen?  And

         15  if and when it does happen, I'm sure at some point

         16  it will happen, who is responsible?  And what kind

         17  of recourse the drivers would have to recoup the

         18  money that they lost because the mechanism went

         19  down.

         20                 MR. DAVIS:  Well I'd like to first

         21  start off and say that was a very detailed

         22  discussion at the beginning of the contracting

         23  process, when the payment process was being defined

         24  and the standards that we vendors were being held to

         25  were being set forth.  So the current payment
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          2  process that requires payment at the end of the fare

          3  was a requirement written into all our contracts.

          4                 There were a lot of comments and are

          5  ways in the industry that the payment processes can

          6  be altered.  With respect to a machine not working

          7  at the end of the fare, or a bad credit card, like

          8  Ed mentioned today, it's no different today than a

          9  driver having a passenger that doesn't have cash.

         10  Yes, as a vendor providing a service to the industry

         11  that was a concern to us.  That's a risk that the

         12  industry bears.

         13                 As far as bad credit and invalid

         14  credit card data, one of the benefits of this

         15  program that was done and agreed to with the credit

         16  card companies, it's a real time authorization.  So

         17  if that authorization comes back, there is no such

         18  thing as a fraudulent card.  For Mastercard and

         19  Visa, a bank issued card, if that authorization

         20  comes through, that's paid.  Any bad, stolen credit

         21  card risk belongs to the issuer, the issuing bank is

         22  the way the process works.

         23                 They've also waived signature

         24  requirements on transactions under $25, and I

         25  believe the last published report of the taxi, the
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          2  average fare before tip is about $10.65.  So well

          3  under the average fare, no signature required.

          4  Which means no chargeback exposure, another

          5  financial risk that people would be concerned with

          6  accepting cards.

          7                 MR. SLOAM:  Can I say something else

          8  about that?  Just about the no signature

          9  requirement.  Let's say I own a small business, a

         10  shoe store, and one of my customers disputes the

         11  charge for one reason or another.  The credit card

         12  issuer comes back and says this card holder disputed

         13  the charge and you have to prove to me that he

         14  actually bought the shoes in your store.  So if I

         15  owned that store, I'd take the receipt with the

         16  signature and I'd fax it back to the card issuer and

         17  that's how I would end the dispute.  So then you

         18  come back and say "How can you waive the signature

         19  requirement under $25?"  Well, guess what the credit

         20  card brands have done?  They've said we will treat

         21  you as if you already did that.  We're going to

         22  characterize every transaction under $25 as if

         23  you've provided a signature.  So we're already

         24  stepping up.  When I say "we" I mean the credit card

         25  industry.  It's not me personally.  These are
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          2  processes that took six to twelve months to get the

          3  card brands to agree.  They're already giving a very

          4  high level of protection for the vast majority of

          5  transactions, which is under $25.  Then above $25

          6  you get a signature, and they should keep those

          7  receipts.

          8                 MR. DAVIS:  If I may, just one more

          9  on security and a requirement that again we the

         10  vendors were asked to build into the payment

         11  process.  If you're a passenger and you pay for a

         12  transaction in a cab with the new technology, on

         13  your monthly statement it will have the medallion

         14  number of the taxi that you rode.  So there will be

         15  no confusion at the end of the month.  What is that

         16  fictitious charge?  Where was it?  I don't remember

         17  being in the cab.  So now with the medallion number

         18  and the electronic trip sheet information it's an

         19  immediate.  Being able to lock back to where that

         20  card was used in the car.  In a dispute situation,

         21  with the trip sheet you can go from your monthly

         22  statement to identify the cab to finding out where

         23  you were picked up and dropped off.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All right.

         25  Questions from Council Member Brewer, and then
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          2  afterwards we're going to hear from Richard Thaler.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

          4  very much. My question is how much ads.  You talked

          5  about Clear Channel. Between the two of you, what

          6  kind of ads are going to be available?  And is that

          7  the primary source of revenue? And how will the

          8  consumer, meaning the passenger, I think there has

          9  been a very good discussion about credit cards and

         10  about the drivers, but the passengers, you know very

         11  clearly that I do not support a flashing 12 inches

         12  from my face advertising mechanism, which is what I

         13  think this is.

         14                 MR. DAVIS:  I'll answer first and

         15  then turn over to Ed because we do have different

         16  business models.  One of the things that I want to

         17  just preface on answering the question, Creative

         18  Mobil Technologies, the reason we're here and my

         19  partner, we are the industry for the industry.  My

         20  partner is a fleet owner.  When this mandate came

         21  down, he said his business, 28 years he's been in

         22  taxi cab business and medallions, that's his bread

         23  and butter, that's his interest, he's always focused

         24  himself on what is best for the taxi industry.  He

         25  knows nothing about technology.  He is scared of
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          2  technology.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I'm not.

          4                 MR. DAVIS:  I'm a technologist by my

          5  career. We came together to form a solution for

          6  industry.  When we did this two and a half years

          7  ago, to put together a response, we were in a room

          8  where originally companies like IBM and HP were

          9  there looking and responding to the RFI.  There were

         10  hundreds of people that were responding, and we

         11  wanted to put together a model that took a mandate

         12  that really honestly there is no one in the industry

         13  wants.  There is not an owner or medallion owner or

         14  a driver who given the option would want to have

         15  this enhancement but it makes sense to do.  And

         16  there is a lot of value to the industry that needs

         17  to be embraced.

         18                 So short sighted and subjective but

         19  it benefits the taxi industry, which benefits

         20  everybody who participates in it.  So we wanted to

         21  come up to a model that says what can we do about

         22  this.  It is an expensive solution.  Forget about

         23  the in- vehicle cost component, which everyone is

         24  focused about.  The data storage and collection

         25  requirements and the security requirements and the
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          2  infrastructures that had to be built alone exceed

          3  the cost that the City envisioned in 2004.         As

          4  a medallion owner, we couldn't put together a

          5  solution and as people to pay for that.  So we came

          6  up with a business model, and we kind piggybacked

          7  off the concept of taxi top of a revenue source.

          8  When the city allowed advertising into the mix, what

          9  we wanted to do was put together a program that

         10  would allow the technology requirement to be

         11  satisfied at no cost.  Literally no cost.  There is

         12  monthly maintenance cost.  There is insurance cost

         13  we have. A cost of doing business.  We needed a

         14  monthly revenue stream because there is no

         15  advertising model today.  It's going to be developed

         16  over the three years of the initial contract.

         17                 So we worked to get that monthly cost

         18  as low as possible.  Believing as these cars go on

         19  the street and a medium develops and the advertising

         20  model builds, the revenues come in and that monthly

         21  cost goes from what's low today.  We are the low

         22  price at $2900.  We believe that price goes to zero

         23  before the three years.  And in the renewal periods

         24  of the contract, when we get there, the medium

         25  should build up so it becomes a revenue generation
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          2  vehicle for the industry.               Owners or

          3  people driving the car can earn revenue and share in

          4  the advertising model as it builds.  How much

          5  advertising?  So if you understand my model, my

          6  business is predicated on the success of this

          7  product in the car.  It has to be in the car.  It

          8  has to be kept operational.  It has to be

          9  presentable, and it has to be engaging or it won't

         10  work. And if it doesn't work I've invested my money,

         11  I've deployed a technology, and I've never been able

         12  to build up a revenue stream.

         13                 So partnering it with Clear Channel

         14  and Clear Channel bringing NBC into the mix, they're

         15  experts in their respective fields in programming

         16  engaging, believe in the medium.  So in a 15 minute

         17  cab ride a passenger should expect to see four maybe

         18  five minutes of advertising intermixed with

         19  programming, which we say content.  It's not

         20  advertising. It's not going be offensive.  It's not

         21  going be loud and it's not going to be in your face

         22  because if it is, you turn it off.  If you turn it

         23  off, people don't want to advertise.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  In the pilots

         25  I couldn't turn it off.  It broke.
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          2                 MR. DAVIS:  It's a different program.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I'm just

          4  saying what happens -- I find things break.  You

          5  won't be able to turn it off.  Do you think that

          6  will happen?  I never want to see this.  And I

          7  promise you, no real West Sider ever wants to see

          8  this thing in the back of the cab.  We want to turn

          9  it off.

         10                 MR. DAVIS.  Will things break?  The

         11  obvious answer is yes.  Things break.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So it will be

         13  flashing in your face.

         14                 MR. DAVIS:  If things break and,

         15  again, I'll speak for our solution.  If the solution

         16  breaks, it won't go on. If it's on, it can be turned

         17  off.  It's not a separate mechanical button.  These

         18  are interactive touch screens.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  I

         20  mean, I feel very strongly about this.  The next

         21  question I have quickly.

         22                 MR. SLOAM:  I can answer your

         23  question then. So we similarly would not be here if

         24  there were no advertising revenue stream very simply

         25  because the City was very aggressive about
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          2  negotiating terms with us.  So what's left is

          3  advertising.  We're not really able to make money on

          4  anything else because we're giving very attractive

          5  terms to the industry, without going into all the

          6  details.

          7                 We have studied what engages

          8  passengers because we have to be focused on what

          9  advertisers are willing to spend their money on.

         10  And they're only going to be willing to spend money

         11  if that passenger is actually looking at the screen.

         12  If, respectfully, the advertiser has your approach,

         13  or the passenger has your approach, and you're just

         14  going to turn the screen off as soon as you get in,

         15  you know what, the advertisers aren't interested in

         16  paying for that.  So we have to figure out a way to

         17  make you interested in our screen.  You personally,

         18  and all the constituents in your district.

         19                 So the research is very, very clear.

         20  The information on the screen has to be attractive

         21  and engaging to the passenger.  If the information

         22  and the content isn't attractive and engaging, all

         23  the advertising dollars are worth nothing.  And as a

         24  result of that, we have very limited amounts on our

         25  screen, portions of our screen, dedicated to
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          2  advertising, and much larger portions of our screen

          3  dedicated to attract different information, which

          4  has to be aesthetically pleasing too.  We have to

          5  illicit the response that we're getting, which is,

          6   "wow, this is really cool. What's that?" And then

          7  they interact with it.  If that's not the response

          8  we're getting, we're not going to generate

          9  advertising dollars.  There's all kinds of ways to

         10  get those responses.  You can look on the Internet

         11  and figure out what are people doing the most.   You

         12  can do research about what people want to read about

         13  in New York City, not necessarily in other cities.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So the issue

         15  will be then it'll be heavily advertising that you

         16  think is appropriate.

         17                 MR. DAVIS:  I didn't say it was

         18  heavily advertising.  If it's heavily advertising,

         19  they'll turn the screen off.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  It will be a

         21  flashing- you don't know what kind of content it

         22  will be, but it's likely to be flashing.

         23                 MR. DAVIS:  Well the best way to --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  The driver,

         25  obviously there has been lots of discussion
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          2  regarding the driver's financial situation and the

          3  company.  But, obviously, the driver has to listen

          4  to this too.

          5                 MR. DAVIS:  There is no volume.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  There is no

          7  volume?

          8                 MR. DAVIS:  Not in ours unless the

          9  passenger chooses entertainment, meaning either

         10  movie trailers or music. And that's not advertising.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  All right,

         12  but the driver, well I consider the trailers

         13  advertising.

         14                 MR. DAVIS:  They don't pay for it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Well, it's

         16  still advertising.  Advertising for a movie.  The

         17  fact of the matter is the driver then -- so you have

         18  an option of turning it off, turning on volume or

         19  just watching it?  Those are the options?

         20                 MR. DAVIS:  You could just watch it.

         21  You could turn it off, or you could choose something

         22  that has entertainment value that has volume.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  So the

         24  driver would have to listen to that?

         25                 MR. DAVIS:  No, it's just the back
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          2  speakers. If you sit -- and I invite you to please

          3  sit in our taxi.  If you sit in the front seat where

          4  the driver sits, he can hardly hear it.  We don't

          5  allow the volume to go too high.  And I understand

          6  my competitors are also putting very low volume on

          7  their speakers.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I'm just

          9  saying that I find that they often don't work

         10  despite all the good efforts that you may suggest.

         11  And in the past, I know this is not current, you

         12  were not able to turn them off.

         13                 MR. DAVIS:  That was three years ago.

         14

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I understand

         16  that.

         17                 MR. DAVIS:  That's like ten decades

         18  of technology evolution.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  All

         20  right, and then I also find that advertising, we are

         21  barraged with Clear Channel.  It's perhaps the worst

         22  in that sense when they put in some of the LED's.

         23  In the West Side we chased them out. They are no

         24  longer allowed in our neighborhood.  But that is

         25   -- just so you know.  The flashing and so close to
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          2  your face, I think it's going to be a challenge to

          3  get acceptance.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          5  Member Brewer and gentlemen.  Thank you very much

          6  for your time today.  Best of luck.

          7                 We have testimony from Richard

          8  Thaler.  Mr. Thaler, please.  After Mr. Thaler,

          9  we'll hear from William Lindauer and Kevin

         10  Fitzpatrick.  Please proceed.

         11                 MR. THALER:  Chairman Liu, Council --

         12  Thank you for this opportunity.  I'd like to read

         13  into the record a summary of my written text, and I

         14  ask that my written text be entered into the record.

         15                 First a couple of comments about what

         16  I've heard earlier today.  I'd like to attempt to

         17  clarify the issue of the fees to the drivers first.

         18  If you look at the TLC website, where they have

         19  posted the fee requirements, I understand that the

         20  transaction fees for credit/debit card acceptance

         21  have been capped between 3.75 and 4 percent.  You

         22  then go on and they define what is known as a

         23  markup.  Which cavalierly, this morning, was not

         24  really discussed accurately. My reading of it as an

         25  independent contractor- lessee, you'll be
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          2  responsible for paying a 3.75 percent markup over

          3  the transaction fee.  Now if I understand the

          4  posting wording correctly, I simply add between 3.75

          5  and 4 percent to 3.75 percent and I get between 7.5

          6  and 7.75 percent, which will be charged to the

          7  driver- lessee.

          8                 Now if you look at that, the extra

          9  3.75 percent might be termed, as I've heard

         10  previously an administrative fee, which is

         11  ludicrous.  An administrative fee is a nominal fee

         12  for reconciliation or administration.  If the credit

         13  card issuers, I should say if the credit card

         14  acquirers pay the merchant two days hence after the

         15  bad settlement at the end of the shift, the only

         16  interpretation that can be given to the 3.75 percent

         17  markup as described by the TLC is a finance charge.

         18                 And if you do the simple arithmetic,

         19  if you take the 3.75 percent finance charge,

         20  financing the advance of the revenues to the driver

         21  for that shift over two days, you get something like

         22  a 675 percent APR, annual percentage rate, which is

         23  kind of injurious for this particular application.

         24  So I think while everyone agrees that credit cards

         25  are a competitive necessity at this point, it's
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          2  really the cost issues and how they are distributed

          3  across the various industry participants are really

          4  what's important.

          5                 And by the way, I wonder if the

          6  owners, which presumably have been blessed as

          7  merchants by the TLC, they will have to issue 1099

          8  MISC tax forms to the drivers because in the

          9  contractor/independent contractor relationship now,

         10  presumably, the contractor- owner is receiving the

         11  money and paying his independent contractor, and

         12  that will require a 1099 tax form.

         13                 There were some other remarks, I

         14  think less important.  I think Mr. Davis made a

         15  remark about lost cards. I don't think it's a major

         16  thing, but I do think that there is a temporal

         17  issue.  If a card is stolen before a card holder

         18  reports it stolen, there might be some exposure to

         19  the person accepting the card.  In addition, it's

         20  probably a legal fiction that if the owner is the

         21  merchant of record, he's not there in the car

         22  meeting the credit card issuer requirements for

         23  honoring cards and card acceptance.  It's the

         24  independent contractor that is, and if the

         25  independent contractor is not on the merchant
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          2  agreement, it could be a legal fiction with some

          3  other kinds of legal exposure.

          4                 I'd like to proceed with the summary

          5  of my full text.  I'll read it into the record.  The

          6  subject of this hearing is will the service

          7  enhancements improve the experience for the

          8  passenger?  Although I admit that credit cards are

          9  probably a competitive necessity at this point, my

         10  answer is, as currently proposed and planned,

         11  emphatically the answer is no.  But more importantly

         12  the issue is the great potential financial harm it

         13  will cause the industry as it is presented.

         14                 Despite the TLC's approval for the

         15  passenger monitor to be used for push advertising,

         16  unlike a Service Model, push advertising has failed

         17  in a previous TLC pilot, as was discussed earlier

         18  and in subsequent focus group reports. I'm hearing

         19  all kinds of comments about those focus group

         20  reports, but everyone is able to go to the July 2006

         21  focus group report posted on the TLC website, and I

         22  don't think that's quite the case.

         23                 Now the other secret report that is

         24  being formulated for release, it hasn't been

         25  released yet, I think will tell quite a different
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          2  story.  It's ludicrous to accept the TLC's claim

          3  that the obvious negative aspects of the previous

          4  pilot and the talking taxi for which was canceled

          5  due to intrusive annoyance, will be addressed

          6  because the monitor can be shut off given the high

          7  cost of this feature and the many more cost

          8  efficient ways of providing far better services.

          9                 In fact, the pioneering and leading

         10  company in interior passenger monitor taxi

         11  advertising in large cities nationwide has failed in

         12  business (despite it's monitor shut off button),

         13  leaving one approved TLC vendor temporarily without

         14  a passenger monitor subcontractor.

         15                 Benjamin Franklin and Albert Einstein

         16  observed that insanity is repeating the same action

         17  while expecting a different outcome, which is

         18  exactly what the TLC continues to attempt.  The

         19  irony is that the TLC is requiring overpriced

         20  passenger display systems which provide advertising

         21  so that the cost can be off- set for something that

         22  irritates the passengers who don't want it in the

         23  first place.

         24                 However, the most serious program

         25  issue is the financial harm it will cause the
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          2  industry.  The systems are now obsolete and are

          3  projected to cause twice their commodity market

          4  value.  The drivers will be caused the greatest harm

          5  with a posted credit/debit card charge mark- up, as

          6  I discussed a moment ago, of 3.75% to receive their

          7  fare revenue from their fleets and agents at the end

          8  of the shift which amounts to a usurious financial

          9  charge of 675 percent APR.  The fleet operators and

         10  lease agents will also be responsible for issuing

         11  1099 MISC tax forms to the drivers.

         12                 Over six years ago, unlike the

         13  advertising model, the TLC was shown a fully

         14  functional Service Model reference design

         15  implementation and a recommended set of operating

         16  standards which became the Service Enhancements

         17  mandate together with the fare increase on March 30,

         18  2004. For the last three years as of this March, the

         19  program which was potentially a significant advance

         20  in service technology, was instead infected with

         21  serious charter and rule violations, failure to

         22  achieve stated objectives and long overdue and

         23  misrepresentations of the TLC's achievements.

         24                 The press has already reported the

         25  appearances of conflicts, irregularities, and rule
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          2  violations.  At this point the program must be

          3  canceled and a technology assessment and cost

          4  benefit analysis be done to open the market for

          5  standard space vendor competition for service

          6  enhancements which actually provide the conveniences

          7  and necessities due the passengers and the drivers.

          8  Thank you for this.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         10  much, Mr. Thaler. We will certainly enter the

         11  entirety of your testimony into the record.

         12                 MR. THALER:  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  We invite William

         14  Lindauer and Kevin Fitzpatrick to testify.

         15  Following them, we'll invite Steve Seltzer and

         16  Robert Kirk.  Gentlemen, please proceed.  As you are

         17  aware, Bill, it is not necessary to repeat

         18  everything that Bhairavi already talked about.

         19                 MR. LINDAUER:  I know, but what you

         20  said was the God's honest truth.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Is that your

         22  testimony?

         23                 MR. LINDAUER:  No, no.  First of all,

         24  why do we have to entertain the passengers?  My

         25  banter is more entertaining.  Maybe we should have a
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          2  cover charge, right?  If you want information, you

          3  got a radio.  We don't need all this jazz,

          4  especially this whole elaborate system.  If you want

          5  to accept credit cards?  There's a gizmo under $100.

          6    The passengers do not need to see the little

          7  wiggly lines because out of all New Yorkers, they

          8  know where they're going.  This is kindergarten

          9  stuff.  We don't need all this big screen thing, and

         10  with a few drinks in them, I know from 30 years of

         11  experience, they'll smash in that screen either with

         12  their foot or with their fist.

         13                 This is a very, very costly nonsense,

         14  and it raises a moral constitutional issue.  This is

         15  a tracking system.  It's a sinister spying system.

         16  Unless you do the right thing by killing the big

         17  brother beast, this thing will fester.  Why doesn't

         18  Mr. Salkin get a job at the Bush Administration?  He

         19  could list the phone calls and open mail, according

         20  to today's Daily News.  That would be a lot of fun.

         21  I mean, I don't want somebody to know where the hell

         22  I am.  As I kid I never wanted my mother to even

         23  know where I was.  And now I'm sure that Chairman

         24  Daus is an amiable person, and Mr. Salkin is an

         25  amiable person, perhaps even well intentioned.
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          2  However, they're overzealous and misguided.

          3                 Daus and Salkin are men of vision.

          4  Unfortunately, it's a severely impaired vision.  He

          5  sees a useless folly through rose colored glasses

          6  and turns a blind eye to the desperate needs of

          7  drivers.  Everyone needs healthcare.  No one needs

          8  GPS.  It's a genuinely pointless system.  The GPS is

          9  for tracking drivers, and a rabid, costly spying

         10  atrocity that, in case you don't know, has drivers

         11  enraged.  Many have urged a strike.  If this thing

         12  goes through, the City Council, the good,

         13  intelligent people, if they're bamboozled by

         14  technology, and let this thing goes through, then

         15  they have to take the blame for any strike. This is

         16  a totally unnecessary system.

         17                 They say that necessity is the mother

         18  of invention, but sometimes invention is just a

         19  mother.  I hope that reason and common sense will

         20  prevail, and this trash technology will be knocked

         21  out by you good people of the City Council.  You

         22  know, Toronto, not a hick town, wanted to collect

         23  meter data, but their legal counsel warned it would

         24  be an invasion of privacy.  I guess they believe in

         25  the Constitution up there.  The TLC spends ten
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          2  million of tax payers' money due to the fact that

          3  they don't believe in the United States

          4  Constitution.

          5                 While the TLC is shoving this

          6  insanity down our throats, as if drivers were frog

          7  wog ducks, it is quick winking the public with snake

          8  oil hipe and flagrant lies in all aspects of its

          9  conduct.  For example, Chairman Daus said after the

         10  2004 fare hike, drivers would make $16 to $18 an

         11  hour.  But recently, he declared drivers made $12 an

         12  hour and that's adequate.  You can look all these

         13  cases Stengle (phonetic) said.  The commissioner

         14  about GPS, it's not a navigation system.  But

         15  anyway, we already have one, a $10 book of maps.  We

         16  had the radio for traffic and emergency information.

         17    It costs zero.  And then the credit card they said

         18  cost under $100, and you know passengers hated such

         19  Daus disasters as the talking taxi, the t.v. taxi

         20  and now we're at the most disastrous of Daus'

         21  disasters.  They surely will detest it, and, as I

         22  said, maybe even destroy it.

         23                 Text messaging is a totally unneeded,

         24  dangerous distraction akin to cell phone use.  The

         25  lost property argument is specious and insulting.
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          2  90% of lost objects are $3 umbrellas and a single

          3  glove.  Losers of cell phones call their cell and

          4  drivers arrange its return.  If you leave a laptop,

          5  it's a good bet the next passenger will be unable to

          6  resist temptation.  How many drivers, though, will

          7  be falsely accused of theft?  How many will sue the

          8  City for malicious prosecution and lost income?  The

          9  New York Taxi Workers Alliance will make sure every

         10  driver seeks justice.

         11                 In conclusion, don't be bamboozled --

         12  I mean, you're too intelligent and too civic minded.

         13    Don't be bamboozled by technology boon dogo.  This

         14  is consumer fraud. I urge you to summon the courage

         15  to scrap the crap, ring one for truth and justice.

         16  Save 40,000 drivers.  Don't dupe 8 million New

         17  Yorkers.  I'm a native New Yorker.  Don't dupe me.

         18  You can't dupe me.  Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Good luck topping

         20  that.

         21                 MR. FITZPATRICK:  You know, last year

         22  I was working a Sunday night, and Sunday nights are

         23  quiet.  It was light rain and everything, and I

         24  picked somebody up at 24th and Madison, and they

         25  were going to 116th and Broadway, a very good fare,
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          2  very easy job.  And, you know, the guy starts

          3  talking and he says, you know, Sunday night, light

          4  rain, the City's quiet.  It's one of the most

          5  pleasant times in the City.  You get a real

          6  experience of the City, you know, not how it's like

          7  at 5 o'clock, and not how it's like at 10 o'clock at

          8  night, quiet.  You know, the lights make patterns

          9  and everything.  It's a real City experience, I

         10  think.

         11                 I was thinking, suppose I had the

         12  talking entertainment cab.  He would have been

         13  bombarded with ads to go to Lou's or go to see this

         14  show, or maybe the entertainment channel would have

         15  put on some chewing gum music.  Maybe chewing gum

         16  music would have been on from before because I had

         17  two teeny boppers in the cab, and they wanted to

         18  hear their teeny bopper music.

         19                 But, anyway, I was told these

         20  systems, there will be a button to shut it off.

         21  They never tell you, well there's a button there,

         22  but you have to sort of go under the seat and then

         23  under like that to get to the button.  And it always

         24  seems this is the way it works.  You keep pressing

         25  this button, you keep pressing this button, and the
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          2  ad keeps coming in to you.  Have you ever had that

          3  experience on the Internet? I'm sure all of you

          4  have.  You know, somebody wants to sell you a

          5  mortgage.  And so you press the button, I want to

          6  get rid of this, I'm not looking for this.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Mr. Fitzpatrick, I

          8  think you've made your point of your testimony.

          9                 MR. FITZPATRICK:  Okay.  This is what

         10  is going to happen with these things.  I'd also like

         11  to point out, did anybody see in the paper today

         12  about, actually a couple of days ago, about polar

         13  bears, you had to worry about them being extinct?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Mr. Fitzpatrick,

         15  why don't you just direct your testimony for the

         16  record?  This is not a afternoon chat.

         17                 MR. FITZPATRICK:  Okay.  Let me tell

         18  you about, okay, we only have so much money in the

         19  kitty, only so much money.  Now if we put money into

         20  the teeny bopper pop up network, we're not going to

         21  have money for green cabs or for wheelchair

         22  accessible cabs.  It's that simple.  Where do we

         23  want to put our money?  That's a very bottom line.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         25  much.  Mr. Steve Seltzer and Robert Kirk.  Following
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          2  that, we have only remaining members of the New York

          3  Taxi Workers Alliance who, if you have filled out

          4  one of these slips, you're certainly welcome to

          5  provide concise testimony.  Gentlemen, please

          6  proceed.

          7                 MR. SELTZER:  My name is Steve

          8  Seltzer.  I have drove a cab from roughly the mid

          9  50's to the mid 80's.  I want to mention two

         10  absurdities, one by the Taxi Commission and one by

         11  myself.  There was a time, I think in the 70's or

         12  80's, when a dissident group and a now defunct taxi

         13  union tried to persuade the Taxi Commission to

         14  install what are called panic buttons by which a

         15  driver who is in trouble threatened with robbery or

         16  violence could immediately notify the police or

         17  somebody connected with the police of his location

         18  so that he could be helped.  The Taxi Commission

         19  never went along with that proposal.  For the Taxi

         20  Commission now to install all this apparatus without

         21  a panic button is, to put it mildly, absurd.

         22                 The second absurdity, when I heard

         23  the descriptions of what the passenger was going to

         24  go through or be subjected to when he got into a cab

         25  with this apparatus, somehow brought to mind one of
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          2  the Chaplin films, I think maybe City Lights, but

          3  I'm not sure, in which Chaplin was an assembly line

          4  worker, and he was summoned into his boss' office to

          5  try out an apparatus which, with his hands bound and

          6  his head in place, would automatically feed him with

          7  mechanical spoons and forks shoving food into his

          8  mouth and a mechanical lift pushing a bowl of soup

          9  into his face.  It may be absurd, but the

         10  description of the passenger's experience,

         11  prospective experience, somehow brought this to

         12  mind.  Of course, the device failed, and was

         13  ultimately rejected, and I hope that that is not a

         14  fantasy.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Mr.

         16  Kirk?

         17                 MR. KIRK:  I didn't prepare anything.

         18  I didn't know about this meeting until yesterday.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You're welcome to

         20  testify, but please keep it concise.

         21                 MR. KIRK:  What I did do is, I took

         22  notes and I listened, and I apologize about the

         23  heckler.  This is the first time I've been down to a

         24  City Council meeting, and I am very impressed by the

         25  City Council.  I've listened very clearly to what
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          2  you said and what everyone said, and there's just

          3  some comments.

          4                 I am one of the original drivers.  I

          5  am one of the original drivers that tested the

          6  equipment that was put in the taxi cabs, the large

          7  screen monitors.  When I would go to the garage, the

          8  largest garage in New York, which I used to manage

          9  for some years, I asked the drivers whether or not

         10  they liked this equipment.  All of them said, yeah,

         11  I mean look at them.  You can see them getting

         12  nervous, and they would come to me later and say,

         13  Bob, you know, they just gave us a new car.  We

         14  really like our jobs.  We really don't want to get

         15  into trouble.  And I really understood that.

         16                 I remember what it was like for the

         17  dispatchers to have to try to get people to drive

         18  these loud, annoying, commercial monitored vehicles.

         19    It was disgusting.  My first passenger was kicking

         20  in the t.v. set.  He was kicking in the t.v. set.

         21  It not only didn't shut -- it was not even made user

         22  friendly, and of course the TLC, I've spoken to even

         23  Commissioner Daus who said well, it's different.  I

         24  said, well, Commissioner, I would like to see the

         25  new inventions before they're put in the taxi cabs,
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          2  and he said, you'll see it like everyone else.

          3  Because he knew that they weren't. They're abusive.

          4  They make noise.  I have to sit in a taxi cab for 12

          5  hours, and I have to, over a period of 12 hours,

          6  listen to the same commercials for 12 hours. There

          7  used to be laws in the Taxi and Limousine Commission

          8  where you have to shut off the radio if someone

          9  doesn't want to listen to the music.  We couldn't

         10  shut it off, and I can guarantee and there is a way

         11  that that computer pops back on unless the City

         12  Council says, if you shut it off, it stays off.

         13                 Now I'm well aware of the

         14  enhancements.  I don't have the same disagreements

         15  that the other drivers would have.  However, I have

         16  a great deal of experience with the Taxi and

         17  Limousine Commission and the large fleet owners.  I

         18  do not trust them when it comes to money.  I would

         19  like to have just some of the comments.

         20                 The most important thing to me is

         21  safety issues.  First and foremost, my safety and

         22  the safety of my passengers and to make them feel as

         23  comfortable as possible. These things are noisy, and

         24  no one likes it.  When I am driving, people are

         25  doing business in the back of my car.  If they are
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          2  not doing business, we get a chance to chat.  They

          3  tell me I'm one of the few drivers that likes

          4  chatting with the passengers.  I love these people,

          5  I really do.  I'm a native New Yorker.  I've been in

          6  the taxi industry for 35 years.  I'm licensed by the

          7  Department of Insurance, the Department of State,

          8  the Department of Motor Vehicles to inspect

          9  automotive vehicles.  I would like to see these

         10  things that have been put into taxi cabs, and I beg

         11  the City Council to let me look at them, and I'll

         12  give you an accurate report not based on my likes

         13  and dislikes.

         14                 A very important issue, the computer

         15  monitors were originally mounted on the partitions

         16  of the taxi cabs behind the front passenger seat.

         17  They were put there because the computers were

         18  burning out in the trunks and so they put them in

         19  the front passenger seat.  They were so noisy.  They

         20  were so terribly noisy that after one time testing

         21  it when they changed the computers, I had to go to

         22  the doctor.  I had tinnitus for six weeks, and I can

         23  guarantee you, I am going to start writing to the

         24  State government if these things go in, and let them

         25  know about what I had to experience.
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          2                 The taxi industry will not spend an

          3  extra nickel on proper fans that will be quiet

          4  unless they are forced by the City Council.  I know

          5  that all of my passengers disliked the old machines.

          6    I will be more than happy to look at your new

          7  merchandise.  If I like it, I will put on my stamps

          8  from New York State, and I'll say that I like it.  I

          9  will go and I will tell the drivers that it's okay.

         10  I doubt that I will like them.  I don't have to be

         11  listening for 12 hours to noise pollution, at least

         12  cabs.

         13                 The Taxi and Limousine Commission

         14  once again spoke about things that they perceive the

         15  truth of the matter is, even the present lease caps

         16  that were not supposed to go up, drive owners raised

         17  the lease caps.  They don't care what the Taxi and

         18  Limousine Commission have to say.  They did it a

         19  week later, and they raised it above the caps that

         20  the Taxi and Limousine Commission set, and these

         21  aren't little players. These are major players.

         22  Some of the representatives are sitting right in

         23  this room.  That means my life could be in danger

         24  for speaking out because I was told not to.  I was

         25  told not to, don't speak about your expertise ever
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          2  in public.  They told me that, and these are major

          3  players.  I will be happy to look at the new

          4  computers.  I understand about credit cards.       But

          5  what you haven't considered is traffic jams.

          6  Everyone has been in supermarkets, and I'm sure that

          7  all of these supermarkets vendors that have their

          8  credit machines will be sitting and testifying the

          9  same way that these other vendors have, but I can

         10  tell you that there is a single time when the line

         11  was empty that after a few people using their credit

         12  cards, somebody had a problem.  And that means that

         13  I'm going to be sitting there in the rain waiting

         14  for another passenger to get in while this other

         15  people is playing with their credit card.

         16                 In New York City I don't think the

         17  technology is here yet to be able to put it in a

         18  vehicle that works so hard and so often and is so

         19  busy for so many hours of the day. Can I check my

         20  notes and see if there's anything else?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  No, please wrap up

         22  because we are out of time.

         23                 MR. SELTZER:  Let the taxi drivers

         24  test it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very
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          2  much.  Let me note for the record that we have

          3  written testimony submitted by Janice Schacter, the

          4  Chair of the Hearing Access Program whose testimony

          5  advocates that every taxi needs to be wired with an

          6  induction loop system for the benefit of hearing

          7  impaired passengers.

          8                 We're joined also today by a large

          9  number of members of the New York Taxi Workers

         10  Alliance.  Let me read their names.  If you still

         11  would like to add some input in addition to what

         12  other officials of your association have already

         13  testified to, you're more than welcome.  Please join

         14  us at the witness table.  I want to thank them for

         15  coming. Kermit Augustine, Bareford Simmons, Osman

         16  Choudhury, Tekle Gebremdhan.  And I would

         17  respectfully request that you keep your testimony as

         18  concise as possible.  The hour of this hearing is

         19  getting late.  Mr. Augustine?

         20                 MR. AUGUSTINE:  Good morning, good

         21  afternoon, ladies and gentlemen of the City Council.

         22    If I were sitting in your position, what I've

         23  heard this morning, I would speak for all of you, I

         24  would definitely say no to this GPS.

         25                 For the simple reason I would say no
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          2  is that the driver is responsible for the car.

          3  There are certain points that we have to pick up

          4  because we're driving a public conveyance for 12

          5  hours roughly, estimate.  And when I have all this

          6  expensive equipment that costs about $5,500 to

          7  install, as well as $175, $180 a month to maintain,

          8  and of course the cost is going to put to the

          9  drivers, of course, I'm going to be going back to

         10  safety of equipment, like safety of my life.

         11                 Like discriminating who I'm going to

         12  pick up, I mean, if there's a couple of young people

         13  out there looking tough, dude rags, reverse baseball

         14  caps, pants hanging down, and I know they're going

         15  to get inside that vehicle, because I've owned the

         16  vehicle, a '99 Crown Victoria, and a couple of times

         17  I picked up everybody, of course.  And when I clean

         18  out the back of my cab, I'm having the same problem

         19  that plagued the busses and the trains back in the

         20  1980's, the late 70's, the mid 70's, graffiti.

         21  Who's responsible for all this expensive equipment

         22  when I pick up some punks or some do disses, and

         23  they decide to mark up everything with a chalk

         24  marker or whatever it is, I mean, vandals.  Who's

         25  responsible?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Mr. Augustine --

          3                 MR. AUGUSTINE:  And then after I drop

          4  those people off, there's a TLC inspector, I mean,

          5  dirty cab, I can get a summons for it.  Who pays for

          6  this damaged equipment?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please wrap up, Mr.

          8  Augustine.

          9                 MR. AUGUSTINE:  That's why I would

         10  say it's a no, definitely.  It's added costs, and as

         11  a driver, or any driver, whether you drive in a

         12  fleet or you're a DOV driver owner operator vehicle,

         13  you cannot guarantee the safety of this particular

         14  equipment.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Mr.

         16  Simmons?

         17                 MR. SIMMONS:  Good afternoon, or

         18  whatever term it is right now.  Mr. Councilman, I'm

         19  appreciating this meeting right here.  I am a member

         20  of the Taxi Workers Alliance, as you know it.  I've

         21  been driving a cab for 35 years in New York City.

         22  Let me give you an example of what this GPS -- I

         23  wouldn't even call it a GPS system because it

         24  doesn't do anything for the drivers.  It doesn't

         25  give you any information where you're going and how
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          2  to get there. Maintenance of this thing is the

          3  responsibility -- the drivers are responsible for

          4  it, and if we do not maintain this thing properly,

          5  and we go for inspections, which we do five times a

          6  year, four times with the TLC and one time with the

          7  State, we get fined for not having an operation

          8  properly in the City. So I'm not going to be long,

          9  Mr. Councilman. I'm asking you and I'm begging you

         10  because we do not want to have any more disturbances

         11  in the City, and believe me, Mr. Giuliani can tell

         12  you that we did disrupt the City quite a while.  We

         13  don't want it.  We do not need it.  It has no

         14  benefits to us.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

         16  Simmons.  Mr. Choudhury?

         17                 MR. CHOUDHURY:  Good afternoon.  My

         18  name is Osman Choudhury.  I'm a member of New York

         19  Taxi Workers Alliance.  Today I'm asking a couple of

         20  points to the TLC. First, as the Commissioner said

         21  here, 2004 given the fare hike, all the benefit

         22  regarding customer improvements, that's why they

         23  given the fare hike.  After eight years they're

         24  given the fare hike, 23 person, fare increased the

         25  leased garage. Before we worked like a $600, but
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          2  after that what if increased the fare but don't give

          3  us the lease, more overcharging.  What I get at 23

          4  person lease for 2004 given increase never get it.

          5  Some guys don't give me the lease.  We pay the high

          6  leases. We don't do anything.  How $700 we pay TLC

          7  and we tell story, they do nothing.  Every time they

          8  come in here and give the wrong testify.  Why?  Is

          9  the public -- is the City workers, I'm not going to

         10  say like that.  The New York Times had an article to

         11  increase the leases.  And another thing, the public

         12  accepting GPS.  GPS is not going to give the City

         13  public.  The public have to -- then they'll have a

         14  high blood pressure. And I will have a diabetes,

         15  back pain.  That is not good condition.  How can the

         16  GPS get antiseptic for driver?  And also, if I go to

         17  Pankiston (phonetic), I have to take time. I get

         18  summons from police because with all details have to

         19  be charged, over 20 cars.  You have to put discharge

         20  the passenger and by this time give me the summons.

         21  Who will be liability for that?  That summons gives

         22  two tickets, one is the improper drop, one is -- Two

         23  summons.  We pay the bill of $200.  How can I get

         24  this right, people?  Also, the TLC doesn't take

         25  credit card machine, why give it to driver's pocket?
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          2    Also, all the dollars, what not have it

          3  commission?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  What does that

          5  mean?  When you have to pay something to the TLC,

          6  they don't take credit cards?

          7                 MR. CHOUDHURY:  Yeah.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All right.  Thank

          9  you.

         10                 MR. CHOUDHURY:  All the time looking

         11  to tell the century, why does TLC do that?  And

         12  also, even I put the cab when it started commission,

         13  I charged it and I give all the fare.  Next, one

         14  week, I cannot get my money.  If I go Monday, some

         15  never get the lease.  After Monday, they will shut

         16  off your meter.  The crisis is now money.  Thank you

         17  very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you for

         19  giving us a lot of information in a quick period of

         20  time.  Mr. Gebremdhim?

         21                 MR. GEBREMDHIM:  Good afternoon, City

         22  Council and good afternoon, New York.  I am New York

         23  Alliance from Pennsylvania.  New York Alliance, we

         24  are not here only.  New York Alliance in 26 in the

         25  United States.  And from my experience, I don't want
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          2  to be nightmare for transportation of New York.

          3  Maybe you hear it, we have experience in

          4  Pennsylvania.  We have GPS.  GPS nothing work.

          5  Navigation system to get you wait three minutes.

          6  $10 is faster than GPS from our survey we see it.

          7  These guys here are to fabricate money they like for

          8  public, they like for taxi drivers.  We had a GPS we

          9  ask, is it going to be the same GPS.

         10                 From experience I tell you three

         11  weeks ago Friday my GPS is off.  Today he said in 48

         12  hours it will be replaced.  They don't replace

         13  Saturday.  They don't replace Sunday.  Monday was a

         14  Holy Day.  Four days I lost job.  And they're going

         15  to pay -- I own the car, I don't pay nobody. When

         16  driver, four days with 8 children, $13 in 12 hours

         17  he makes, three days shut down his GPS.  Where is he

         18  going to go? Some people fabricate money.  This is

         19  GPS's, I think, is going to be nightmare like

         20  Pennsylvania for passengers.  They are going to shut

         21  down.  They have experience.  We're going to shut

         22  down all 26.  This is not going to be a benefit to

         23  the drivers.  Drivers, they don't like it.  In

         24  Pennsylvania they don't like it.  They force the TLS

         25  here.  They force it in Pennsylvania, PPA.
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          2                 Credit card issue, credit cards they

          3  cannot force you in business.  Any kind of business

          4  from our experience they cannot force us.  They

          5  cannot give us stickers, but they come around to

          6  skim $12 million a year from credit cards.  They

          7  push us in airports.  From now on, if you don't take

          8  credit card, you're not going to work.  We shut down

          9  one hour.  We shut down one hour.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

         11  Gebremdhim. Thank you.  Gentlemen, thank you very

         12  much for testifying today.  Let me call up our final

         13  panel for today's hearing. All members of the Taxi

         14  Workers Alliance, Ronald Blount, Luis Molina, Nabil

         15  Hasan, Mohammad Khan and Michael Pfeifer.  Once

         16  again, brevity is the soul of wit.  We'd like witty

         17  testimony.

         18                 MR. PFEIFER:  Good morning.  My name

         19  is Michael Pfeifer.  I'm a member of the Alliance.

         20  With all due respect to Bhairavi, we're not a union.

         21  We're not able to organize as a union under the

         22  leasing terms with the owners.  We're not protected

         23  by the National Labor Relations Act as independent

         24  contractors.  So we can't organize, and we really

         25  don't have a voice.  This is a feeble attempt to
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          2  prevent this from happening.

          3                 I pose a question to you.  Would this

          4  technology reduce the number of assaults on

          5  passengers?  Will it reduce the amount of refusals?

          6  Will it reduce the recklessness that you see out on

          7  the streets from taxi drivers?  With all due respect

          8  to my colleagues, many of us drive recklessly.  This

          9  is all because we're forced into a lease.  We have

         10  to pay the owner $140 a day for a 12 hour shift

         11  before we make any money for ourselves.

         12                 I think the Council and the

         13  Commission surely wants to improve the ride for the

         14  passenger, but you're going about it all wrong.  The

         15  thing to do is to get rid of the lease, to repeal

         16  the lease so the driver and the owner or the

         17  medallion can have a share of the total earnings on

         18  the meter, and the driver can drive in a civilized

         19  manner.  He doesn't have to refuse.  He doesn't have

         20  to assault the passenger.  He can be a courteous and

         21  pleasant driver.  That's all I have to say, thank

         22  you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         24  much.  Mr. Blount?

         25                 MR. BLOUNT:  Yes.  Thank you,
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          2  Councilman.  You guys are doing a really good job.

          3  I've listened to what's going on here, and in

          4  Philadelphia they didn't do this.  We just wanted to

          5  give you a glimpse of what's happening in

          6  Philadelphia.  The system is connected to the meter.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me say for the

          8  record that you are a member of the Taxi Workers

          9  Alliance of Pennsylvania?

         10                 MR. BLOUNT:  Of Pennsylvania, yes.

         11  Okay.  The system is connected to the meter, and

         12  every time the system crashes, and it has crashed in

         13  every cab in every cab company. The meter goes out.

         14  The driver has to flat rate the customers.  So

         15  there's a lot of argument all day long between the

         16  driver and the customer about what the fare should

         17  be. Now at the end of the day the driver has to go

         18  in there and pay his lease.  Now he has to argue

         19  with the medallion owner that he didn't make money

         20  because the meter wasn't working.            So no

         21  one is taking responsibility, and no one comes up

         22  with solutions.  What do you when a system crashes?

         23  They're having problems with the credit card,

         24  getting their credit card money.  This whole thing

         25  is causing problems in Philadelphia.  There was a
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          2  one day strike when they first started with it.

          3  There was a strike about a week and a half ago at

          4  the airport concerning this thing.  I mean, it's

          5  just creating a whole lot of trouble with the City.

          6                 We're just saying, we're hoping that

          7  New York looks to see if this system is actually

          8  working in any other city before they start bringing

          9  it here.  They should give you proof that it is

         10  working before they mess with 40,000 cab drivers.

         11  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So you said there

         13  was a strike in Philadelphia a week and a half ago?

         14                 MR. BLOUNT:  At the airport, yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And the issue was

         16  credit card payments?

         17                 MR. BLOUNT:  It was over the forced

         18  taking over of credit cards with the GPS.  Not so

         19  much with the credit cards. Cab drivers take credit

         20  cards, but they're forcing us to do credit cards now

         21  but one clearing house.  So everybody has to go to

         22  Taxitronics.  They can't take credit cards. We're

         23  thinking that this is making Taxitronics rich off

         24  our sweat, off the sweat off our backs.  They put

         25  the credit card swiper right on the partition right
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          2  in the customer's face. Last week a driver was in an

          3  accident, and the partition, it went right into the

          4  customer's face, the credit card swiper.

          5                 We're just saying it's creating a lot

          6  trouble, and I think that they should work out, at

          7  least see what's going on in Philadelphia or some

          8  other cities before.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Mr. Blount, you're

         10  testifying that there was a significant amount of

         11  breakdown in the credit card processing mechanism?

         12                 MR. BLOUNT:  Absolutely.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And are we talking

         14  about in 2006?

         15                 MR. BLOUNT:  Right.  This year, like

         16  within a couple of weeks ago.  There's still a lot

         17  of trouble with it. The drivers, the customers will

         18  swipe it, and then like a week later when the driver

         19  goes to get his money from the broker, it didn't

         20  register.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So it seemed to

         22  have worked when the passenger was paying, but then

         23  later on when the drivers went to claim their

         24  payments from those credit card transactions --

         25                 MR. BLOUNT:  Right.  It didn't
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          2  register.  I don't know what's going on.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Well, thank

          4  you very much, Mr. Blount.

          5                 MR. BLOUNT:  Thank you, sir.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I think we have,

          7  maybe I can skip a little bit to Mr. Hasan, who's

          8  also a member of the Taxi Workers Alliance of

          9  Pennsylvania.  Okay, that's fine. Mr. Khan?

         10                 MR. KHAN:  My name is Mohammad S.

         11  Khan. I'm the secretary of Taxi Workers Alliance of

         12  Pennsylvania.  I just come here to show you some

         13  points.  I know everybody is tired to listen to a

         14  long story, so I'm just saying some words.  For

         15  example, if somebody wanted to use the credit card

         16  machine for some business, they ask the business

         17  owner, you want a credit card machine for your

         18  business?  If the owner says yes, we need the credit

         19  card machine in our business so they can provide.

         20                 But with a driver, the pulse to the

         21  driver pays the GPS system and credit card machine

         22  in your cab.  The driver doesn't want this one and

         23  the customer doesn't want this one.  Already we use

         24  other credit card machines that cost $15 in our cab

         25  company.  We just swipe the card and get information
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          2  on the radio.  The dispatcher allows the number and

          3  everything is done.  We don't need this system.

          4                 The second thing, last term New

          5  Year's Eve our company, 35 radio system and GPS

          6  meter system broke, and it was Holy Day no office

          7  was open so we can go to pick this one. Two days we

          8  lose our job and then Thursday we go to the GPS

          9  system, and the PPA says we cannot make money

         10  because the system was broken.  It's a technical

         11  fault.  This is not our fault.  So I would lose this

         12  money.

         13            Second thing, sometimes customers sit in a

         14  cab and they're angry with their family or they're

         15  coming from a bar and they're already angry, they're

         16  drunk, and they try to play with the face in the

         17  system.  If the system is broken, we don't know who

         18  is going to pay this money.  And they charge $15, 5

         19  to 10 percent from this credit card machine.  Then

         20  we go money in our account after two weeks to one

         21  week they can get this money in our account.   Thank

         22  you very much, sir. I'd like to thank all of you

         23  because is the first time in New York this is

         24  allowed to our, the poor cab driver, we are a public

         25  servant.  You listened to us our points.  Thank you
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          2  very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

          4  for making the trip from Pennsylvania.  Last but not

          5  least, I want to thank all of you for joining us in

          6  this hearing all of today. Mr. Molina?

          7                 MR. MOLINA:  Good afternoon, Chairman

          8  Liu. Thank you very much for listening to my

          9  brothers and to the New York Taxi Workers Alliance

         10  of which I am also a member. I used to have a car

         11  and lease a medallion a few years ago, and I can

         12  tell you this is a little before they started

         13  proposing the GPS system.  Since leasing, it's not a

         14  bargain to buy a car and lease a medallion in the

         15  taxi cab industry because you literally lose money

         16  because unless you lease both the car and the

         17  medallion, then you don't have nothing to pay for

         18  which is what I'm doing right now.

         19                 Because the only thing I have to pay

         20  is the lease and the gas, but when I used to have a

         21  car only, and lease the medallion, I thought I was

         22  going to make a profit. I lost money, and I was

         23  perpetually in debt from month to month trying to

         24  support my two kids, my wife, and it was harsh.  The

         25  industry is a harsh industry when you don't have any
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          2  healthcare or benefits.  I had to file public

          3  assistance on a few occasions just to get food

          4  stamps because the money that you make from leasing

          5  is not enough.  At the time this was before we had

          6  911, and this was before we had the fare increase,

          7  and then recently November 30th we had the meter

          8  adjustment.

          9                 When there was a fare increase, there

         10  was also the lease cap that was devilishly raised.

         11  And the brokers and the garages did the same thing

         12  November 30th when the TLC stated no raising of the

         13  lease cap.  Now to lease both a car and a cab 24

         14  hours as opposed to a shift, and I'll admit for the

         15  record, I lease both a cab and medallion 24 hours, 7

         16  days, out of economic necessity, and I put in my 12

         17  hours like most of the drivers.  I used to pay

         18  $1,075 week.

         19                 Now when the TLC states that there is

         20  not supposed to be a raising of the lease, when we

         21  had the meter adjustment from the two minutes to the

         22  one minute, guess what? December 11th, Johnny Come

         23  Lately, I go to my garage to pay my lease to the

         24  dispatcher, and they tell me, oh, your lease has

         25  been raised.  How much?  $1,120.  I was shocked, and
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          2  I was outraged, and I was calling aloud that I swear

          3  that these people should be taken for a lawsuit, a

          4  class action lawsuit because this is criminal.

          5                 At this point I feel that the garages

          6  have raised the lease because they're anticipating

          7  GPS when it's not even here officially, as the

          8  official machine that we had to have in all the

          9  cabs.  I don't see the justification for the

         10  premature raising of the lease.  This is illegal.  I

         11  think, Chairman, that the TLC needs to be seriously

         12  investigated, and they should be demanded that they

         13  should tell the TLC to dispatch inspectors to all

         14  the garages and find them and jail these garaging

         15  brokers that raised our leases illegally.  Just

         16  because they're getting ready for GPS. This is

         17  criminal, and it's not fair to drivers like me at 45

         18  years of age with no healthcare, no health

         19  insurance, no disability.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Mr. Molina.

         21                 MR. MOLINA:  I need help.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The point is well

         23  taken, and my Committee will be very happy to work

         24  with Bhairavi and her folks in cases where it's

         25  clear that companies have illegally raised the lease
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          2  arrangements, so we'll work on that issue.

          3                 MR. MOLINA:  Chairman Liu, I'd like

          4  to state also for the record that the garage broker

          5  owner was here, and I stared him in the face, and I

          6  told him how upset I was that my lease was illegally

          7  raised.  So I'm taking a risk of being here today

          8  because I don't know if my leasing privileges with

          9  the garage that I'm with, and I'm going to state for

         10  the record it's checker management.  They should be

         11  investigated.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

         13  for your testimony, and I want to thank all the

         14  participants who have been here today at this

         15  hearing of the Transportation Committee of the City

         16  Council.  We are now adjourned.

         17                 (Written testimony read into the

         18  record.)

         19

         20  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

         21  RICHARD THALER, PhD.

         22  TLC SERVICE ENHANCEMENTS PROGRAM

         23  January 4, 2007

         24

         25                 Will the Service enhancements improve
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          2  the experience for the passenger?  As currently

          3  proposed and planned, emphatically the answer is:

          4  NO!  But more importantly the issue is the great

          5  potential financial harm it will cause the Industry.

          6                 Despite the TLC's approval for the

          7  passenger monitor to be used primarily for push

          8  advertising, unlike a Service Model, push

          9  advertising has failed in a previous TLC pilot and

         10  in subsequent focus group reports.

         11                 It is ludicrous to accept the TLC's

         12  claim that the obvious negative aspects of the

         13  previous pilot (and the talking taxi program which

         14  was canceled due to its intrusive annoyance) will be

         15  addressed because the monitor can be shut off given

         16  the high cost of this feature and the more cost

         17  efficient ways of providing better services. In fact

         18  the pioneering and leading company in interior

         19  passenger monitor taxi advertising in large cities

         20  nationwide has failed in business, despite its

         21  monitor shut off button, leaving one approved TLC

         22  vendor temporally without a passenger monitor

         23  subcontractor.

         24                 Benjamin Franklin and Albert Einstein

         25  observed that insanity is repeating the same action
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          2  while expecting a different outcome, which is

          3  exactly what the TLC continues to attempt.  The

          4  irony is that the TLC is requiring overpriced

          5  passenger display systems that provide advertising

          6  so that the cost can be off- set for something,

          7  which irritates the passengers who don't want it in

          8  the first place.

          9                 However, the most serious program

         10  issue is the financial harm it will cause the

         11  industry.  The systems are now obsolete and are

         12  projected to cost twice their commodity market

         13  value.  The drivers will be caused the greatest harm

         14  with a posted credit/debit card transaction fee mark

         15  up of 3.75 percent to receive their fare revenue

         16  from fleets and agents at the end of the shift,

         17  which amounts to a usurious finance charge of 675%

         18  APR.  The fleet operators and lease agents will also

         19  be responsible for issuing 1099 tax forms for the

         20  drivers.

         21                 Over six years ago, unlike the

         22  advertising model, the TLC was shown a fully

         23  functional Service Model reference design

         24  implementation and a recommended set of operating

         25  standards, which became the Service Enhancements

                                                            200

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  mandate, together with the fare increase on March

          3  30, 2004.  For the last three years as of this

          4  March, the program, which was potentially a

          5  significant advance in service technology, was

          6  instead infected with serious charter and rule

          7  violations, failure to achieve stated objectives and

          8  misrepresentations of TLC achievements.  The press

          9  has already reported the appearances of conflicts,

         10  irregularities and rule violations.

         11                 At this point the program must be

         12  cancelled and a technology assessment and cost

         13  benefit analysis be done to open the market for

         14  standards- based- vendor competition for Service

         15  Enhancements, which actually provide the

         16  conveniences and necessities due the passengers and

         17  drivers.

         18                 I will attempt to identify serious

         19  TLC Service Enhancements Program difficulties with

         20  respect to Charter and TLC rule violations, its

         21  failure to achieve stated program objectives and

         22  misrepresentations of program achievements.  I hope

         23  this Committee will consider these opinions and

         24  suggestions to remedy and improve the program

         25  consistent with the Council's oversight
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          2  responsibilities for agency conduct and procurement

          3  activities under Charter Sections 29 and 30.

          4                 Beginning over six years ago the TLC

          5  was presented a complete reference design including

          6  suggested standards of operation and a fully

          7  functional system implementation for what was to

          8  become the Medallion Taxi Service Enhancements Rule

          9  (a.k.a. The Taxi Technology Program on march 30,

         10  2004).  A portion of the March 30, 2004, fare

         11  increase approved together with the Service

         12  Enhancements Rule was earmarked to off- set the

         13  costs of the program to the Industry, estimated at

         14  the time to be $46 million over three years.

         15                 In the normal course of TLC

         16  Transportation Policy and Implementation Initiatives

         17  under Charter Chapter 65, Sections 2300, 2302, and

         18  2303 the TLC is required to promulgate system

         19  standards of operation and specifications, and if

         20  necessary, under the pilot program rules, conduct

         21  limited evaluation and acceptance tests for the

         22  approval by the TLC of equipment and service vendors

         23  to install, support, and operate compliant systems

         24  in medallion taxis.

         25                 For the new Service Enhancements
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          2  program the TLC chose to depart from this

          3  established practice by using an

          4   "Innovative" procurement process under Section 3.12

          5  of the PPB Rules, which requires the CCPO's review

          6  and approval of a formal request by the TLC's ACCO

          7  justifying the need to use Section 3.12.

          8                 The TLC received approval from the

          9  CCPO to use Section 3.12.  The TLC in cooperation

         10  with DoITT proceeded to conduct a RFP solicitation

         11  and system evaluation process on behalf of the

         12  Industry, selecting five vendors and negotiating

         13  pricing for system hardware and services as well as

         14  the terms and conditions of service contracts.  One

         15  vendor withdrew and the remaining four vendors are

         16  proceeding to an Acceptance Test phase prior to

         17  receiving a notice to market and sell compliant

         18  systems to medallion owners for installation and

         19  operation in medallion taxis.

         20                 Charter and TLC Rule Violations,

         21  Failure to Achieve Stated Objectives and

         22  Misrepresentations of Program Achievements: The

         23  authority granted to the Taxi Commission in City

         24  Charter Chapter 65, Section 2300 does not extend to

         25  procurements on behalf of the industry, which limits
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          2  the owner's choice as to who may sell, rather than

          3  encouraging an open market for compliant vendor

          4  products and services.

          5                 This policy is in direct conflict

          6  with the Citizen's Budget Committee Report of 2002

          7  admonishing City agencies for past practices and

          8  warning that only the widest open- market vendor

          9  competition provides the best, lowest cost products

         10  and services. Moreover the limitation of the vendor

         11  market to only four vendors under the "no Fees

         12  Payable" provision of the vendor contract negotiated

         13  by the TLC raises serious federal anti- trust,

         14  banking and telecommunications issues:

         15                  "...The consideration provided by

         16  the TLC to the Contractor for the Services, the

         17  system and the promises made by the Contractor

         18  hereunder is (a) an opportunity for Contractor to

         19  offer the Owner Base Services to Owners pursuant to

         20  Section 6 (Owner- Contractor Contracting Process),

         21  (b) the TLC's exclusion of other vendor and service

         22  providers that are not selected by the TLC as the

         23  result of the RFP process, and (c) the opportunity

         24  for the Contractor to obtain revenue from PIM

         25  advertising. The foregoing considerations offered by
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          2  the TLC is not an exhaustive list of the benefits

          3  Contractor may experience in connection with this

          4  Agreement or any Owner- Contractor contract...."

          5                 The TLC Agency Chief Contracting

          6  Officer's (ACCO's determination," 2. Method Best

          7  Serves the Interests of the City." Justifying the

          8  use of PPB Procurement Section 3.12 was presented in

          9  his request shown in Attachment 1, to the CCPO dated

         10  November 8, 2004.  It is not only a

         11  misrepresentations of the market circumstances, but

         12  the cause of an unnecessary TLC budget expense of

         13  over $2 million and will result in unnecessary

         14  significant increased costs to the owners, drivers

         15  and the public. The misrepresentation for the

         16  justification of the unprecedented RFP process and

         17  the need to limit the market was restated in the

         18  RFP, page seven.

         19                  "individuals and small businesses do

         20  not have easy access to such technological

         21  expertise", and "Historically, certification- like

         22  models have been unsuccessful when there is a highly

         23  technical project requiring significant investments

         24  for research and development with a limited market

         25  potential."
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          2                 There was no factual basis given by

          3  the TLC to make this determination as applied to the

          4  Service Enhancements Systems, yet the request was

          5   "rubber stamped" by the City's Contracting

          6  Procurement Officer (CCPO).  Throughout the course

          7  of the evaluation and selection process it appears

          8  it is the TLC and its subject matter experts that

          9  lack a sufficient understanding of the system

         10  technology and engineering.  Contrary to the TLC's

         11  claim, the resulting systems are nothing more than

         12   "patched together" commodity hardware at negotiated

         13  prices amounting to twice the market value.

         14                 As an example, the passenger display

         15  subcontractor for one selected vendor failed and

         16   "went out of business" after the selection process

         17  despite the subcontractors pioneering efforts in

         18  taxi interior display advertising in large cities

         19  throughout the country.  It should have provided

         20  another strong indication that interior advertising

         21  will also again be rejected in New York taxis.

         22                 Apparently, it was a simple matter

         23  for the vendor to quickly substitute the passenger

         24  display commodity hardware feature without long-

         25  term- development time as suggested by the TLC.
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          2  Notwithstanding the "low tech", high price results

          3  costing the TLC over $2 million to manage, it

          4  appears that important features for efficient

          5  electronic fare payment such as the use of an ISO

          6  14443 contact less reader (for the American

          7  Express`Express Pay,' Visa's`Blink', and

          8  MasterCard's`PayPass') and a PIN pad for popular on

          9  line debit`check card' payments may be missing.

         10                 The ultimate irony is the TLCs

         11  continued encouragement of interior passenger

         12  display advertising, which proved to be a serious

         13  failed mistake in the TLC's 2002- 2003 "Taxi Video"

         14  pilot.  This was confirmed later as a failed

         15  endeavor with the business failure of the country's

         16  pioneer and leading provider of taxi passenger

         17  display advertising systems and continues to

         18  displease passengers in subsequent focus group

         19  reports.  It was both Benjamin Franklin and Albert

         20  Einstein who made the observation that insanity is

         21  doing the same thing over and over again and

         22  expecting different results.  So essentially the TLC

         23  is requiring an advertising display with full

         24  knowledge of the irritation and displeasure caused

         25  to passengers so that the advertising revenue will
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          2  off- set the cost of the annoying display hardware.

          3  It is ludicrous to accept the TLC's justification

          4  for this requirement by simply claiming the

          5  passenger can shut off the hardware display.

          6                 Six years ago a "service model" for

          7  the passenger display made sense and was presented

          8  to the TLC.  At that time it included real time

          9  airline arrival and departure information with

         10  airline check- in processing using the International

         11  Air Travel Association Common User Self- Service

         12  Standard (IATA CUSS) standard used at airport

         13  terminal kiosks.

         14                 However, technology apparently moves

         15  faster than the TLC's ability to embrace it. The

         16  systems currently being considered under the

         17  Services mandate are obsolete and provide little

         18  cost benefit.  All of the Service Enhancements

         19  features may be provided more safely and more cost

         20  effectively without a passenger display.

         21                 The latest evolution of Point- of-

         22  Sale devices perform all electronic fare payment

         23  functions more effectively and at a lower cost

         24  without the need for the passenger display.  In

         25  fact, the current placement of the passenger display
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          2  below the passenger's horizontal line of sight

          3  presents an established physiological risk of

          4  passenger disorientation and car sickness, looking

          5  down at the screen while the car is in motion, and

          6  more importantly, a new high potential risk for

          7  passenger injury by being thrown toward the

          8  partition in stop- and- go traffic.

          9                 Passengers interested in the limited

         10  information that could be provided by a passenger

         11  display are now using their Smart Phones.  Smart

         12  Phone use will increase exponentially in 2007 as the

         13  wireless carriers become content providers.  From

         14  movies and TV to music downloads and any and every

         15  conceivable kind of information, the Smart Phone is

         16  becoming the device of choice as Web 2.0 services

         17  also mature and the theoretical 3.1 megabits per

         18  second wireless bandwidth exceeds one megabits per

         19  second in actual download speeds (EVDO REV A) now

         20  offered by Sprint.

         21                 Although Sprint is now the

         22  acknowledged leader in wireless data communications,

         23  and also leading in WiMax deployment, the TLC and

         24  DoITT evaluators rejected Sprint because the

         25  evaluators found Sprint to be unfit to provide
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          2  carrier Wireless Telecom Services for the Service

          3  Enhancement Programs.  During the past six years of

          4  presentations and demonstrations of the reference

          5  design and system implementation to the TLC

          6  mentioned above, the eTaxiNY TM web site shown as

          7  part of the design implementation can now include

          8  the mapping and route function feature easily

          9  accessed on Smart phones by those interested

         10  passengers. The Smart Phone can do far more in terms

         11  of passenger conveniences and necessities without

         12  the additional "taxing" cost burdens to all the

         13  owners, drivers and passengers themselves with a

         14  costly display that is now obsolete.

         15                 Notwithstanding the excessive system

         16  costs to the owners and system obsolescence, it is

         17  likely the drivers and DOV operators will suffer the

         18  greatest potential financial harm.  It appears that

         19  the TLC has endorsed the electronic payment model

         20  using the owner, fleet operator, or agent as the

         21  merchant of record. Potential problems may arise

         22  since under the merchant contract it is a legal

         23  fiction (sic) in that the owner is providing taxi

         24  transportation services directly to the passengers

         25  and honoring credit/debit cards according to the
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          2  card issuer requirements rather than the driver as

          3  an independent contractor.

          4                 Also, the owner- merchant will be

          5  required to issue IRS 1099 MISC tax forms to the

          6  drivers for electronic fare payment net revenue as

          7  an independent contractor.  In addition, according

          8  to the TLC's posted allowable transaction fee "mark-

          9  up" if the owner- lessor is permitted to charge the

         10  driver- lessee the mark- up cap at 3.75 percent of

         11  the "credit/debit charges incurred during the

         12  driver's shift" cannot be justified as an

         13  administrative charge and must be considered a

         14  finance charge for a two- day end- of- shift

         15  advance, at an usurious 675 percent APR!

         16                 The proper solution to the merchant

         17  funding dilemma was incorporated in the previous

         18  reference design implementation whereby the drivers,

         19  if they choose, must be accepted as the merchant of

         20  record and be charged the lowest "owner" transaction

         21  rate without the "mark up".  A direct end- of- shift

         22  advance in the design implementation enables the

         23  driver to access net electronic fare payment revenue

         24  at a convenient ATM.

         25                 Finally, it would be unfortunate if
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          2  in considering this significant Medallion Taxi

          3  Service Enhancements undertaking that all, even more

          4  important industry priorities including passenger

          5  and driver safety and security enhancements and taxi

          6  exhaust emission reduction are not likewise

          7  considered.

          8                 Advances in real time high resolution

          9  video capture and transmission now enable real time

         10  incident video to be transmitted to law enforcement

         11  and/or medical first responders. These new

         12  affordable technologies combined with real time

         13  event data recording (EDR) as reported in the NHTSA

         14  2006 EDR Final Rule provide the important Automatic

         15  Crash Notification (ACN) event trigger and a new

         16  level of passenger and driver safety and security.

         17                 Exhaust emission reduction may also

         18  be easily integrated into a Service Enhancements

         19  System program for the entire medallion taxi

         20  population.  Currently taxis are inspected three-

         21  times- per- year although it is recognized that for

         22  a given vehicle population OBDII monitoring is the

         23  most effective means to minimize exhaust emissions.

         24  For this purpose an OBDII software "scan tool" as

         25  shown to the TLC in the reference design
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          2  implementation may be incorporated as part of the

          3  Service Enhancements System to report exhaust

          4  emission related trouble codes "full time".  A

          5  driver would appreciate knowing if a miss fire is

          6  not only responsible for spikes in exhaust

          7  emissions, but a loss in fuel economy as well.

          8                 As  reported by the TLC, it is

          9  projected that the program will cost the industry

         10  from $40 million to over $90 million over three

         11  years while the TLC's Chairman has made cavalier

         12  claims that the TLC staff proceeded with the entire

         13  evaluation, selection, and contract process to

         14  achieve the best advanced technology systems at the

         15  lowest cost to the industry.  Claims that the

         16  drivers will do more business and tips will increase

         17  are purely speculative as experience in other point-

         18  of- sale environments may not be similar, especially

         19  given the passenger's distaste for display

         20  advertising and the tip would have to increase by

         21  7.5 percent to 7.75 percent for the driver to break

         22  even.

         23                 An objective technology and cost

         24  benefit assessment would reveal this is a complete

         25  misrepresentation and which is something that should
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          2  have been required by the Board of Commissioners

          3  after the long delay in implementing the program.

          4  The entire process of evaluation, selection,

          5  contract negotiation and execution was turned over

          6  to several agency staffs and proceeded without TLC

          7  Board of Commissioners's oversight for which several

          8  commissioners have expressed some surprise and

          9  regret that it is too late for necessary oversight

         10  as was made clear in the transcript of the TLC

         11  public meeting on December 14th.

         12                 At this point given that the

         13  passengers have been paying for almost three years

         14  for Service Enhancements that have not yet completed

         15  Acceptance Testing, the only reasonable and rational

         16  action must be the termination of this $2 million

         17  TLC mistake to prevent one far more costly to the

         18  owners and drivers. The Board of Commissioners and

         19  the Council should terminate the current program

         20  already reported in the press for being tarnished by

         21  the appearance of conflicts, irregularities and rule

         22  violations, (Attachment 2).

         23                 In cooperation with the Industry

         24  including the technical skills and experience of the

         25  licensed meter shops that have likewise been
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          2  excluded from the current process, a new truly

          3  advanced, cost effective program should be crafted

          4  recognizing new important priorities.  Drawing upon

          5  the Industry's experience and skills ignored by the

          6  TLC, combined with an open market, standards based

          7  certification process and if necessary with the help

          8  of the Council, the Industry can repair the damage

          9  and waste of time of the past three years and deploy

         10  a Service Enhancements program that has real value

         11  and one that the City and Taxi Industry can embrace

         12  with pride.

         13                 Conclusion, I have attempted to

         14  identify TLC Service Enhancements program Charter

         15  and TLC Rule violations, failure to achieve Program

         16  objectives and misrepresentations of program

         17  achievements.  I hope the Committee will consider

         18  these opinions and suggestions for program remedies

         19  consistent with the Council's oversight

         20  responsibilities for agency conduct and procurement

         21  activities under Charter sections 29 and 30.

         22  Respectfully submitted by,

         23  Richard Thaler, PhD.

         24  Dthaler@usa.net

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 1:50 p.m.)
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